TO:

FROM:

DATE:

RE:

TOWN OF STRATHAM

INCORPORATED 1716
10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE e STRATHAM NH 03885

VOICE (603) 772-7391 e FAX (603) 775-0517

MEMORANDUM

Michael Houghton, Select Board Chair
Allison Knab, Select Board Vice Chair
Joe Anderson, Select Board

David Moore, Town Administrator

August 11, 2023

Select Board Agenda and Materials for the August 14t Regular Meeting

Please allow this memorandum to serve as a guide to the Select Board Meeting agenda for
Monday, August 14, 2023.

V.

VI.

Consideration of Minutes —July 31, 2023
Finance and Budget Reports (second meeting of the month)

A. Review of financial reports submitted for the July 31t meeting.
a. Christiane has prepared some additional analysis for this review at the six-
month mark.

B. Discussion of 535 and tax rate setting preview
a. We are fortunate our auditors completed their field work and 535 early on
this year. Christiane is prepared to review this document and provide a
preview of the tax rate setting details for later this year.

Department Reports & Presentations

A. Seth Hickey — Parks & Recreation
B. Chief Anthony King - Police

Correspondence
A. PUC Stratham Community Power Docket Filing Confirmation
B. Eversource letter — July 2023



VII.

VI,

XI.

C. NH Division of Historical Resources letter — June 20, 2023
D. NH DOT Highway Block Grant letter — July 27, 2023
E. Household Hazardous Waste 2023 event set for October 21 (see flier)

Public Comment

Public Hearings, Ordinances and/or Resolutions

Discussion of Monthly Reports — (second meeting of the Month)
New Business and Action Items

A. Action on Energy Commission recommendation for Special Town Meeting for
Community Power

At your meeting, | will provide you with optional meeting dates if the Board would like
to schedule a special Town Meeting for the purposes of approving a Stratham
Community Power Plan. You will recall, at your last meeting you approved of the plan.
Since that time, the Plan has been submitted to the PUC and the sixty-day clock for their
review has begun. | have gathered room availability at SMS as well as the availability of
Town Counsel, Moderator and Deputy Moderator, and researched other logistics
regarding the timing and follow-up actions. At this time, | am recommending the Board
establish a meeting during a weekday Thursday October 19t or October 26" but | will
have other dates available to discuss including October Saturday availability of the team
| of the resources | mentioned above. Also, | conferred with the Energy Commission at
their August 8" meeting and they support a later October meeting.

B. Action on Performance Guaranty releases
As you know, Director of Planning and Community Development Mark Connors has
been working to address several long past performance guarantees. The attached
memorandum from Mark make a recommendation to release two

a. Kennebunk Savings Bank

b. Stratham Green - Solar

C. Request for Drawdown from Donated Funds — Police Department

The Police Chief is requesting a release of donated funds for certain equipment. Please
see the memo from the Chief in your packet.

Town Administrator Report



| will present developments associated with open items and other business of the Town. If any
Board member has a specific request of an item | cover at the meeting, | welcome hearing from
you at any time.

XIl.

XIl.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVII.

XVIII.

Informational Items
Department Linkage Reports (Second meeting of the month)

Reservations, Event Requests & Permits
A. Raffle Permit application — Troop 185 for raffle at Car Show — Sept 24, 2023

Review of Recent or Upcoming Board & Commissions Agendas

Boards and Commissions Nominations & Appointments

A. Appointments for consideration:

None for this meeting.

B. Appointments to be voted on:
1. Re-appoint Dan McAuliffe to a full member seat on the Conservation
Commission for a 3 year term ending at Town Meeting 2026
2. Re-appoint Brad Jones to a full member seat on the Conservation Commission
for a 3 year term ending at Town Meeting 2026

Miscellaneous & Old Business

Adjournment



TOWN OF STRATHAM

INCORPORATED 1716

10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE e STRATHAM NH 03885

VOICE (603) 772-7391 e FAX (603) 775-0517

SELECT BOARD AGENDA
August 14, 2023
7:00 P.M.
Hutton Room, Stratham Municipal Center
10 Bunker Hill Avenue, Stratham, NH 03885

This meeting of the Select Board will be held in the Hutton Room of the Stratham Municipal
Center

The public may access this meeting at the date and time above using this conference call
information. Please dial the conference number (877) 205-7349 and input 2254 when
prompted for a user pin/code. If at any time during the meeting you have difficulty hearing the
proceedings, please e-mail dmoore@strathamnh.gov.

To access materials related to this meeting, please see this link:
https://www.strathamnh.gov/select-board

l. Call to order
Il. Roll Call
Il. Consideration of Minutes — July 31, 2023

V. Finance and Budget Reports (second meeting of the month)
A. Review of financial reports submitted for the July 315t meeting.
B. Discussion of 535 and tax rate setting preview

V. Department Reports & Presentations
A. Seth Hickey — Parks & Recreation
B. Chief Anthony King — Police

VI. Correspondence

PUC Stratham Community Power Docket Filing Confirmation
Eversource letter — July 2023

NH Division of Historical Resources letter —June 20, 2023

NH DOT Highway Block Grant letter — July 27, 2023

Household Hazardous Waste 2023 event set for October 215 (see flier)

moO WP

The Select Board reserves the right to take up business in any order deemed appropriate by the Chair. A motion to
enter Non-Public Session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3 may occur at any time during the meeting. Submission of
items to be placed on the Agenda must be to the Town Administrator by 4 pm the Wednesday before the scheduled
meeting.


https://www.strathamnh.gov/select-board

VII.

VIII.

XI.

XIl.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVII.

XVIII.

TOWN OF STRATHAM

INCORPORATED 1716
10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE e STRATHAM NH 03885

VOICE (603) 772-7391 e FAX (603) 775-0517

Public Comment
Public Hearings, Ordinances and/or Resolutions
Discussion of Monthly Reports — (second meeting of the Month)
New Business and Action Items
A. Action on Energy Commission recommendation for Special Town Meeting for
Community Power
B. Action on Performance Guaranty releases
a. Kennebunk Savings Bank
b. Stratham Green - Solar
C. Request for Drawdown from Donated Funds — Police Department
Town Administrator Report
Informational Items

Department Linkage Reports (Second meeting of the month)

Reservations, Event Requests & Permits
A. Raffle Permit application — Troop 185

Review of Recent or Upcoming Board & Commissions Agendas

Boards and Commissions Nominations & Appointments

A. Appointments for consideration:

B. Appointments to be voted on:
1. Re-appoint Dan McAuliffe to a full member seat on the Conservation
Commission for a 3 year term ending at Town Meeting 2026
2. Re-appoint Brad Jones to a full member seat on the Conservation Commission
for a 3 year term ending at Town Meeting 2026

Miscellaneous & Old Business

Adjournment



MINUTES OF THE JULY 31, 2023 SELECT BOARD MEETING

MEMBERS PRESENT: Board Members Chair Mike Houghton, Vice Chair Allison Knab, Joe
Anderson.

ALSO PRESENT: Town Administrator David Moore

At 7:00 p.m. Mr. Houghton opened the meeting and asked for motions on the minutes. Mr.
Anderson motioned to approve the minutes from July 10, 2023, and July 17, 2023. Ms. Knab
seconded the motion. All voted in favor.

Mr. Houghton recognized the Energy Aggregation Committee and thanked them for the effort
they’ve put in thus far. Chair of the Energy Commission Matt O’Keefe introduced the other
members of the Energy Commission, noting that the membership is the same on the Energy
Aggregation Committee: Mike Welty, Joe Van Gombos, Paul Deschaine, Joe Anderson (all
were in attendance with the exception of EAC Chair Charlie Case. They updated the Board on
their work on the Stratham Community Power program. Mr. O’Keefe reviewed the electricity
rates, indicating competitive rates of the communities with existing aggregation programs were
much lower. We have access to this information because we are members of the Community
Power Coalition of NH (CPCNH). The Committee has gone through the required steps of the
Public Utility Company and are now seeking Select Board approval of their plan. It will then be
submitted to the PUC for approval, which could take up to two months. If it is accepted by the
PUC, a Town Meeting will be needed to affirm that the residents want to proceed with the
Community Power program. The EAC’s hope is to hold a special Town Meeting in October
since it would mean that residents could save money on their electricity supply much earlier than
if the action was taken in March. This timing for a Town meeting would also allow sufficient
time to hold public information sessions. If the voters support moving forward with the plan,
there will be final steps involving Unitil, our selected provider, and informing the residents of
their options. Then we would wait for the time period in which we could opt in with our
community power provider.

Mr. Houghton offered residents in attendance an opportunity to ask questions. Delores
Benevento asked if rates would be re-evaluated every six months. Mr. O’Keefe said it depends
on the provider that we choose. Any Stratham Community Power program would only begin if
the rates offered would be less than the Unitil default price. The EAC would evaluate to get the
best rates and limit the risk of paying a higher rate. Mr. O’Keefe described how they would
evaluate the rates. .

Ms. Knab asked about the percentage of renewables. The Town would choose the default rate
based on the priorities of the residents, but individual residents may choose their own options.
With the various companies who could administer our program there are likely to be rates
offered at the minimal renewable standard all the way up to 100% renewable.

Mr. Anderson moved that the Select Board approve the Stratham Community Power Electric
Aggregation Plan as adopted by the Energy Aggregation Committee on July 11, 2023. Ms. Knab
seconded the motion. All voted in favor.



Select Board Meeting July 31, 2023 Page 2 of 5

Mr. Anderson asked for a general timeline for holding the special Town Meeting. Mr. Deschaine
noted that it would take an additional 5 months, after voter approval, before they could choose a
rate. Seeing no reason to delay implementing the program, the Board supported holding a
special town meeting. Mr. Moore will mail the package to the PUC tomorrow. Mr. Moore
advised the Board he would work on logistics related to Town Meeting timing and bring them a
recommendation at their August 14™ meeting.

Mr. Houghton recognized Library Director Kerry Cronin. Ms. Cronin has reached her six month
mark. She reported on resident participation in library events. The volunteer fair was successful.
She thanked DPW for installing the raised garden bed. She continued her report, describing
upcoming library events. She’s been doing outreach to seniors to learn what programming they
desire. She talked about the groups and committees she’s become involved with and the new
programming she’s created to foster community engagement.

Before she began, a library space study was performed. The final report was recently completed.
After evaluation, the Library Board of Trustees decided to renovate the bathroom spaces as a
priority. Renovating the bathrooms won’t be impacted if they later decide to make changes to
the layout of the library. Maintenance Foreman Jason Pond will be installing an art hanging
system this week. Two new employees, Penelope Lee and Rhonda Cunha have recently started.
They discussed the door between the library and the municipal center. Lastly, Ms. Cronin
informed the Board that they had secured the bookkeeping services and that contracted had who
been helpful and made important changes in financial management. She gave the Board a
financial spreadsheet which showed that they had been under budgeting for their bookkeeper and
media materials, therefore, these items will need an increase in the budget.

Mr. Houghton recognized Town Planner Mark Connors. Mr. Connors introduced William
McCarthy of the Conservation Commission. The Conservation Commission held a Public
Hearing to support committing $500,000 out of the Land Conservation Fund for the conservation
of Squamscott Fields (aka Stuart Farm). Some of this land is already preserved, but this would
preserve the rest, including a large amount of shoreline on the Squamscott River. Grant
opportunities exist for coastal communities, of which Stratham qualifies, for large amounts of
money. The Town would be pursuing a $1.8 million dollar grant but would need the Town’s
commitment of up to $500,000 to apply for the grant. After this purchase, there will still be
funds left in the Land Conservation Fund of approximately $450,000. The Conservation
Commission voted unanimously in support of this purchase. SELT has been vital in helping the
Commission get to this point. Public access is a requirement of the grant. They discussed the
challenges this requirement poses with an operating agricultural use on the property but are
confident it can be done. Ms. Knab motioned support for committing $500,000 out of the Land
Conservation Fund towards the Squamscott Fields project. Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.
All voted in favor.

Mr. Connors then gave an update on the Open Space Plan. There are two surveys available to
the residents to gain their input. He discussed the surveys and other public outreach
opportunities.



Select Board Meeting July 31, 2023 Page 3 of 5

Mr. Connors talked about the process he is following to evaluate the candidates for the Planning
and Community Development Office Coordinator position.

Mr. Connors reported on general economic development news. Optima Dermatology Clinic
opened, which is helpful for building our commercial tax base. Ginger Fox bakery will be
opening at the end of August. They would like to collaborate with the Town on a Grand
Opening in September. He is preparing performance guarantees to be released. He briefly
discussed the Heritage District and gave a quick update on Planning Board applications.

Ms. Knab asked for information about tidal culverts. Mr. Moore explained that it is a state
project run by environmental advocates. The project will not begin until next year. We will get
more information as it gets closer. Mr. Connors went to the public hearing and was informed
that the road (Squamscott) will be closed during the project.

Mr. Houghton moved to New Business. Mr. Moore addressed the memorial bench request and
summarized that at a previous meeting, the Board wanted the opinion of the Stratham Hill Park
Association on the request for a memorial bench at Stratham Hill Park. SHPA guidance iss that
the Town focus on establishing memorials that would replace existing elements. Mr. Moore has
worked with the family who is agreement with placing a six-foot Victor Stanley park bench,
which would replace a worn bench in the vicinity of the playground equipment. Mr. Anderson
motioned to authorize the Town Administrator to work with Ms. Carissa Murray to install a
bench as described and dedicate it to three recently deceased Stratham residents: Andrew W.
Scamman, William C. Chisholm and William J. Perry and to accept a donation of up to $4,500
for this purpose. Ms. Knab seconded the motion. All voted in favor. Mr. Moore was also
approached by another organization regarding a memorial bench for a different resident. He is
awaiting their follow up and he will bring that forward to the Boad.

Mr. Houghton moved to the agenda item regarding the CIP funding for the Fire Tower. Mr.
Houghton motioned to authorize the Town Administrator to spend $5,400 for HEB Engineers to
pursue the engineering assessment for the Stratham Hill Fire Tower. Mr. Anderson seconded the
motion. All voted in favor.

Mr. Houghton asked about the candidates for the Treasurer position. Mr. Moore suggested the
Board confer on the recommendation from the selection committee in non-public session and
take an action in public session.

Mr. Houghton moved to the goals update. Mr. Moore explained the difficulties with hiring DPW
personnel and summarized recruiting efforts and the stages of various other searches.
Contracting lawn cutting has gone well. DPW has produced a draft of a of Standard Operating
Procedures manual. The DPW Administrative Assistant is assisting the DPW Director with
duties related to the JLMC and the Cemetery Trustees. Mr. Moore and Ms. McAllister have
been working on the Employee Manual. Some items require Select Board input. They decided
to do an in-depth review during their August 14™ meeting.



Select Board Meeting July 31, 2023 Page 4 of 5

Mr. Moore noted that the Parks and Recreation programs are running well and participation and
satisfaction with the summer camp program has been high. We hope to have a recommendation
for a Program Assistant soon.

Fire Chief Denton found a Texas A&M University leadership training for his captains.

The Request for Proposals for the Re-val process has closed. This will be a major priority for
next year.

Mr. Moore has not made any progress on finding a replacement for the Emergency Management
Director.

Mr. Moore appreciates the encouragement the Board has given him regarding training and
development. He shared with department heads about their desire to invest in people and help
them grow. All employees recently attended a Right-to-Know training. CPR and Joint Loss
sponsored trainings are being planned.

Mr. Houghton asked if there were any general public comments. Hearing none, at 8:31 p.m. Mr.
Houghton motioned to go into a non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3, Il (c) on a
matter which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the reputation of another. Mr.
Anderson seconded the motion. Roll call: Houghton-yes; Knab-yes; Anderson-yes.

At 9:33 p.m. Mr. Houghton motioned to come out of the non-public session and seal the minutes.
Ms. Knab seconded the motion. All voted in favor.

Mr. Anderson motioned to approve Rebecca Tremblay as the Town’s Deputy Treasurer. Ms.
Knab seconded the motion. All voted in favor.

Mr. Houghton asked about the Town Administrator report. Mr. Moore highlighted the ARPA
use roster of projects. We must have our projects contractually committed by the end of the
year, Dec. 2024. He has been working with DPW; there are plenty of projects that qualify for
ARPA funding.

Mr. Moore is working with Nate Merrill on a dedication ceremony for the Joan Sewall room.
They hope to hold it in October.

Mr. Moore attended the Summerfest event. The Open Space and Community Power tables saw a
lot of engagement with the public. Residents engaged less with the Town volunteer and
employment but were happy to meet, connect with Town leaders and sign up for the newsletter.
He noted the Fire Recruitment tent was busy and energetic.

Mr. Houghton moved to liaison report outs by Board members. After speaking with Mr. Mears,
Mr. Anderson wanted clarification on the number of plow drivers we had on staff last winter
noting our vulnerability with staff transitions or outages due to sickness or injury. He pointed to
concerns of staff needing to cover multiple plow routes on occasion. Mr. Anderson suggested



Select Board Meeting July 31, 2023 Page 5 of 5

we be prepared for potential protracted staff challenges and consider establishing contracting
relationships to supplement our forces. The Board supported exploring options.

Mr. Anderson reported being impressed with the trainings Fire Chief Denton has lined up for the
fall. They have recruited 4 or 5 new members. At Summerfest, 13 residents expressed interest.
Initial projections indicate attendance at Summerfest this year was higher than last.

Mr. Houghton reported that Police Chief King was occupied with staffing issues. His new admin
started today. Ms. Knab suggested a new employee coffee meet and greet some morning. She
also reported receiving feedback about communication challenges but provided no elaboration.

RESERVATIONS
Ms. Knab motioned to allow the Reproductive Freedom Fund of NH to use the Front Pavilion
and waive the fee. Mr. Anderson seconded the motion. All voted in favor.

At 9:45 p.m. Mr. Houghton motioned to adjourn. Mr. Anderson seconded the motion. All voted
in favor.

Respectfully submitted,

Karen Richard
Recording Secretary



Town of Stratham

Financial Summary Report

Fund s"'?:t'e 4 :’":::;:‘; Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total YTD FY 23 R:r;::::g Y?D
Taxes 175,820.93 92,128.13 107,712.05 18,694.17 1,293,036.73 | 11,020,873.00 12,708,265.01
100 No SB  General Fund Revenue 227,720.12 291,576.69 244,465.15 310,531.83 301,442.70 276,127.87 1,651,864.36 3,700,000.00 | 2,048,136 | 45%
Expenditures 955,465.11 517,739.52 536,956.82 476,433.44 623,389.20 755,119.35 3,865,103.44 8,211,188.00 | 4,346,085 | 47%
School & County pass through Disbursement 1,876,813.00 | 1,876,813.00 | 1,876,813.00 | 1,876,813.00 | 1,876,813.00 | 1,872,466.00 11,256,531.00
Net (2,428,737.06)| (2,010,847.70)| (2,061,592.62)| (2,024,020.44) (905,722.77)|  8,669,415.52
Bank 1 Reconciled Balance Cash 13,023,612.02 | 10,969,286.12 8,948,197.95 6,930,924.47 6,187,011.68 | 13,985,318.72
Electronic 157,092.35 134,892.56 147,201.75 71,262.35 227,155.33 454,848.46
Total 13,180,704.37 | 11,104,178.68 | 9,095,399.70 | 7,002,186.82 | 6,414,167.01 | 14,440,167.18
Treasurer's Reconciled Balance Cash 11,087,361.14 8,948,197.95 6,930,924.47
Electronic 134,892.56 71,262.35
SB  NH Public Deposit Investment Pool-NHPDIP Investment 21,574.52 21,651.54 21,738.46 21,825.26 21,918.69 22,010.96
CRF SB  Employee Termination Trust Investment 103,285.64 64,332.32 64,482.59 64,600.77 64,630.92 64,651.70
CRF SB  Highway Vehicle CRF Investment 486,338.92 488,093.75 489,233.85 490,130.45 490,359.16 615,557.06
CRF SB  SVFD CRF Investment 616,422.13 558,310.83 559,614.94 560,640.53 560,902.15 671,117.91
CRF SB  Town Buildings & Grounds CRF Investment 325,909.82 327,085.78 327,849.79 328,450.63 328,603.90 328,709.58
CRF SB  Radio Communications Equip CRF Investment 51,957.70 52,145.18 52,266.98 52,362.77 52,387.20 52,404.04
Trust Yes CC Land Conservation Trust Investment 985,823.51 989,380.60 991,691.61 993,509.04 993,972.64 994,292.57
subtotal CRF/Trusts 2,569,737.72 2,479,348.46 | 2,485,139.76 2,489,694.19 2,490,855.97 2,726,732.86
Aggregate Total Funds Available 15,772,016.61 | 13,605,178.68 | 11,602,277.92 9,513,706.27 8,926,941.67 | 17,188,911.00
404 Yes Rec Com Recreation Revolving Fund Revenue 2,499.58 41,215.52 1,750.00 45,465.10
Expenditures 2,157.50 11,860.22 22,729.54 36,747.26
Net 342.08 29,355.30 (20,979.54)
Bank 3 Reconciled Balance Cash 292,409.74 297,671.74 422,893.44 420,911.03 395,494.68 390,482.07
Treasurer's Reconciled Balance
NHPDIP Investment 4,259.19 4,275.33 4,307.81 4,325.01 4,343.52 4,361.80
102 Yes SB  EMS Special Revenue Fund Revenue 13,794.95 11,136.31 13,119.79 15,642.17 14856.93 27,719.01 96,269.16
Expenditures 620.44 1,183.02 326.68 1,818.71 1658.93 326.68 5,934.46
Net 13,174.51 9,953.29 12,793.11 13,823.46 13,198.00 27,392.33
Bank 4 Reconciled Balance Cash 629,493.45 754,124.94 649,921.30 661,201.79 675192.02 703,623.35
Treasurer's Reconciled Balance
NHPDIP Investment 52,339.71 52,725.66 52,937.32 53,148.71 53,376.22 53,600.91
900 Yes SB FIDUCIARY FUND Revenue
Bank 5 Expenditures
Net
Bank 5 Reconciled Balance Cash *4 501,389.75 511,936.81 502,008.19 502,475.69 504,937.42
Treasurer's Reconciled Balance
103 Yes SB Police Detail Revolving Fund Revenue 17,493.66 9,484.16 11,420.98 14,622.01 53,020.81
sub account Bank 5 Expenditures 14,353.55 8,829.00 7,506.00 19,510.51 50,199.06
Net 3,140.11 655.16 3,914.98 (4,888.50)
PD Detail Reconciled Balance Cash 104,223.73 113,707.89 102,540.90 101,810.40 103,151.08

Treasurer's Reconciled Balance




Fund st::;e 4 ::"::;;::; Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total YTD FY 23 R:::::::g Y?D
105 Yes SB Stratham Hill Park Revolving Revenue - 300.00 350.76 650.76
sub account Bank 5 Expenditures - - - -
Net - 300.00 - 350.76
SHP Reconciled Balance Cash 50,875.43 51,142.40 51,627.56 51,978.32 52,254.36
Treasurer's Reconciled Balance
109 Yes HCom Heritage Fund Revenue - - 17.33
sub account Bank 5 Expenditures - -
Net - -
Heritage Reconciled Balance Cash 7,052.37 7,068.58 7,119.77 7,137.10 7,154.40
Treasurer's Reconciled Balance
Exp Trust Yes Heritage Preservation Trust Fund  Investment 207,992.80 208,743.29 209,230.88 209,614.33 209,712.14 259,795.66
112 Yes SB/PD Stratham Dare Revenue 15.44
sub account Bank 5 Expenditures
Net
Stratham Dare Reconciled Balance Cash 6,307.46 6,321.96 6,335.55 6,350.99 6,366.38
Treasurer's Reconciled Balance
sub account Bank 5 Expenditures
Net
Cemetery Land Reconciled Balance Cash
Treasurer's Reconciled Balance
SUBTOTAL 900 TOWN FUNDS *| 177,704.03 | 18750712  176,909.99 |  176,585.64 | 178,257.61 |
Sub Accounts - Long Term/Asset
Green Solar Surety Cash 4,440.36 4,450.57 4,460.14 4,471.00 4,481.84
Varsity Wireless Historic Sign Cash 7,357.18 7,374.09 7,389.94 7,407.94 7,425.90
Bunker Hill Ave Improvements Cash 17,349.17 17,389.04 17,426.43 17,468.88 17,511.21
Bunker Hill Commons Fire Cistern Cash 8,087.74 8,106.33 8,123.76 8,143.55 8,163.28
Mobil Cistern Cash 34,097.83 34,176.20 34,249.69 34,333.11 34,416.31
Tansy Ave Cash 7,145.88 7,162.31 7,177.71 7,195.19 7,212.63
Winterberry Cistern Cash 949.29 951.47 953.52 955.84 958.16
I Fire Protection FundI Cash 47,700.52 47,810.15 47,912.95 48,029.66 48,146.05
subtotal asset 127,127.97 127,420.16 127,694.14 128,005.17 128,315.38
~ SubAccounts-RentalEscrow
Foss property Cash 3,690.72 3,699.20 3,707.16 3716.19 3,725.19
Gifford House Cash 2,131.67 2,136.57 2,141.16 2146.38 2,151.58
Park Cottage Cash 976.08 978.32 980.43 982.81 985.19
Subtota escrow [ Grsar|  Gmeos| Gmmrs| emmam| emese] | | [ [ [ [ | [ [ [ ]




Fund s"'?:t'e 4 :’":::;:‘; Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total YTD FY 23 R:r;::::g Y?D
Sub Accounts - Performance Bond
Altid Enterprises (2011) Cash 11,289.79 11,315.74 11,340.07 11,367.69 11,395.24
Kennebunk Savings Landscape Cash 1,025.76 1,028.12 1,030.33 1,032.84 1,035.24
Kennebunk Savings Maintenance Cash 2,564.39 2,570.29 2,575.82 2,582.09 2,588.35
200 Domain Drive Landscape Cash 2,571.06 2,576.97 2,582.51 2,588.80 2,595.08
| Lindt Offsite Improvementsl Cash 1,271.02 1,273.94 1,276.68 1,279.79 1,282.90
NHSPCA (2004) Cash 28.96 29.03 - -
Robie Farms-renamed Treat Farms Cash 112,539.21 112,797.87 113,040.41 113,315.75 113,590.35
GCNE (2004) Cash 35,567.20 35,648.95 35,725.60 35,812.62 35,899.41
Jotaph Realty (2005) Cash 22,901.89 22,954.53 23,003.89 23,059.92 23,115.80
subtotal performance bonds 189,759.28 190,195.44 190,575.31 191,039.50 190,576.31
SUBTOTAL other subaccount Bank 5 323,685.72 324,429.69 325,098.20 325,890.05 325,753.65
AGGREGATE CASH TOTAL 14,603,997.31 12,667,912.17 10,670,222.63 8,586,775.33 7,989,791.13 15,534,272.60
AGGREGATE INVESTED TOTAL 2,855,903.94 2,766,744.28 2,773,354.23 2,778,607.50 2,780,206.54 3,066,502.19
TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE 17,459,901.25 15,434,656.45 13,443,576.86 11,365,382.83 10,769,997.67 18,600,774.79
Trust Cemetery Trust 612,945.23 621,341.38 624,601.59 624,504.81 626,175.48 632,717.62
1987 Mary & Walter Smyk Park Trust 336,773.93 341,998.45 344,027.12 343,966.89 345,006.50 349,077.35
1989 Scamman Park Trust 1,454.93 1,471.88 1,478.47 1,478.28 1,481.66 1,494.87
1932-1977 Stratham Hill Park 75,144.19 75,846.04 76,118.56 76,110.47 76,250.13 76,797.00
1966 Stratham Hill Park Association 130,820.51 132,284.63 132,853.14 132,836.27 133,127.61 134,038.09
2017 350th Anniversary Trust 3,709.38 3,722.77 3,731.48 3,738.32 3,740.06 3,741.27
2012 Stratham Fair Capital Improvements 20,625.68 20,700.11 20,748.47 20,786.50 20,796.20 20,802.89
2012 Stratham Fair Operating 62,593.16 62,819.02 62,965.75 63,081.14 63,110.57 63,130.87
2012 Stratham Fair Rainy Day Fund 15,378.69 15,434.18 15,470.24 15,498.59 15,505.82 15,510.80
2012 SVFD Fair Trust 108,633.66 109,025.64 109,280.30 29,333.96 29,347.65 29,357.09
2012 SVFD J Hutton Fund 10,538.79 10,576.82 10,601.52 10,620.95 10,625.91 10,629.32
2012 SVFD R Wiggin Fund 11,870.68 11,913.51 11,941.34 11,963.22 11,968.81 11,972.66
2012 SVFD C Scamman Fund 6,414.00 6,437.14 6,452.18 6,464.01 6,467.03 6,469.11
TOTAL 1,396,902.83 1,413,571.57 1,420,270.16 1,340,383.41 1,343,603.43 1,355,738.94
Notes: Jan  Police Detail Fund expense reflects
a 2021 expenditure paid from Gen Fund
Notes: Feb  1/2 of Feb Gen Fund cash reflects TC/TC
deposited into EMS bank acct in error
Notes: April  SVFD reflects S80K to Gen Fund
for FD Engine
Notes: June Actual June tax collected is 11,355,979

minus Lindt abatement of 335,099




Run: 7/24/2023 at 1:02 PM

Revenue (w/property taxes)

All -

Revenues

100 3110 00 000 Property Tax abatements
100 3110 40 000 Property Tax Revenue

100 3185 01 000 Yield Tax Revenue

100 3189 01 000 Railroad Tax

100 3190 25 000 2021 Property Tax Interest
100 3190 26 000 2020 Tax Redemption Interest
100 3210 01 000 UCC Filings & Certificates
100 3210 02 000 Cemetery Lot Excavation
100 3210 03 000 Municipal Agent Fees

100 3210 05 000 Titles

100 3210 06 000 Vital Records

100 3210 07 000 Filing Fees

100 3210 08 000 Boat Agent Fees

100 3210 09 000 Misc Town Clerk Fees

100 3210 10 000 TC Mailing Fees

100 3210 11 000 Cremation Lot Excavations
100 3210 12 000 Fish & Game Municipal Agent Fees
100 3220 01 000 Motar Vehicle Permit Fees
100 3220 02 000 Boat Fees - Town

100 3230-01 000 All Building Permits

100 3290 01 000 Dog Licenses

100 3290 02 000 Dog License Fines

100 3290 03 000 PD-Gun Permits

100 3290 04 000 Bad Check Fees

100 3350 01 000 Rooms & Meals

100 3353 01 000 Highway Block Grant

100 3358 02 000 OEM Drill Reimbursements
100 3358 09 000 Police Dept Grants Received
100 3401 01 000 PD-Parking Tickets

100 3401 02 000 PD-Alarms

100 3401 03 000 PD-Incident

100 3401 04 000 Planning Board

100 3401 05 000 Zoning Board Of Adjustment
100 3401 06 000 Scrap Metal Recycling

100 3401 07 000 Plan Raview

100 3401 08 000 Fire Inspections

100 3401 09 000 PD - Witness Fees

100 3401 10 000 PD Court Fees

100 3401 13 000 Recreation Year-End Fees
100 3401 15 000 PD -Motar Vehicle Reports
100 3401 16 000 PD -Hawkers/Peddlers Lic.
100 3401 17 000 PD-School Resource Officer
100 3404 01 000 Transfer Station Permits

100 3404 02 000 Transfer Station Fees

100 3409 01 000 Franchise Cable Fee

100 3499 05 000 Primex/NHRS Insurance refund
100 3501 01 000 Sale of Recycling Bins

100 3501 03 000 Copies

100 3501 04 000 Sale of Cemetery Lots

100 3501 08 000 Sale of Cremation Lots

100 3502 02 000 Investment Interest

100 3503 01 000 Gifford House Rent

100 3503 02 000 Park Cottage Rent

100 3503 03 000 Municipal Center Rent

100 3503 04 000 Foss/28 Bunker Hill Property Rert
100 3509 01 000 Miscellaneous Revenue

100 3509 05 000 Fire Department Details

100 3912 02 000 Transfer from SVFD Association Fund

Total Revenues

Total Revenues

Town of Stratham

Page:
For 6/30/2023
YTD
FY2023 FY2023 %o
Budget MTD Actual Balance Collected
0.00 {335,098.87) (335,098.87) 335,098.87 0.00
0.00 0.00 14,893,198.00 (14,893.188.00) 0.00
500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
30,000.00 110.20 19,906.38 10,093.62 66.35
3,500.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00
2,500.00 0.00 1,080.00 1,420.00 43.20
750.00 0.00 700.00 50.00 93.33
30,000.00 2,985.00 15,282.00 14,718.00 50.94
3,200.00 340.00 1,728.00 1,472.00 54.00
2,000.00 222.00 1,143.00 857.00 57.15
50.00 459.00 459.00 (409.00) 918.00
1,600.00 171.00 1,201.00 399.00 75.086
2.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 0.00
2,750.00 143.00 1,353.00 1,397.00 49.20
4,750.00 1,150.00 2,200.00 2,550.00 46.32
200.00 30.00 (1,882.00} 2,082.00 (941.00)
2,156,058.00 186,427.13 1,053,057.90 1,103,000.10 48.84
6.200.00 578.96 4,7356.15 1,464.85 76.37
150,000.00 15,616.00 88,006.77 61,993.23 58.67
7,700.00 314.00 7,315.94 384.06 95.01
650.00 41.00 203.00 447.00 31.23
200.00 60.00 200.00 0.00 100.00
200.00 0.00 75.00 125.00 37.50
683,285.00 0.00 0.00 683,285.00 0.00
176,170.00 0.00 71,475.58 104,694.42 40.57
9,000.00 2,125.00 6,375.00 2,625.00 70.83
0.00 0.00 939.45 {939.45) 0.00
100.00 500.00 500.00 {400.00) 500.00
300.00 15.00 15.00 285.00 5.00
500.00 30.00 180.00 320.00 36.00
2,000.0C 0.00 3,703.00 {1,703.00) 185.156
350.00 330.00 1,160.00 {810.00) 331.43
5,500.00 0.00 350.36 5,149.64 6.37
50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 0.00
500.00 225.00 525.00 (25.00) 105.00
25.00 0.00 20.00 5.00 80.00
75.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 0.00
1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
2,750.00 435.00 1,395.00 1,355.00 50.73
1560.00 40.00 40.00 110.00 26.67
71,385.00 35,692.50 35,692.50 35,692.50 50.00
6,250.00 970.00 6,345.00 (95.00) 101.52
58,500.00 7.261.00 26,957.00 31,543.00 46.08
171,600.00 0.00 83,703.09 87,796.91 48.81
0.00 0.00 1,889.63 {1,889.63) 0.00
800.00 0.00 10.00 790.00 1.25
2.000.00 0.00 108.75 1,891.25 5.44
500.00 0.00 750.00 (250.00) 150.00
50.00 700.00 2,150.00 (2.100.00) 4,300.00
40,000.00 13,707.08 120,859.91 (80,659.91) 302.15
27,000.00 2,100.00 12,600.00 14,400.00 486.67
11,400.00 950.00 6,025.00 5,375.00 52.85
1.600.00 0.00 450.00 1,150.00 28.13
21,600.00 1.800.00 10,800.00 10,800.00 50.00
2.000.00 0.00 121.63 1,878.37 6.08
700.00 600.00 1,062.50 {362.50) 151.79
0.00 0.00 80,000.00 (80.000.00) 0.00
3.700.000.00 {56,871.00) 16,231,066.67 (12,531,066.67) 438.68
3,700,000.00 (58,871.00) 16,231,066.67 (12,531,0686.67) 438.68




Run: 7/24/2023 at 1:01 PM Town of Stratham Page: 1
For 6/30/2023
Dept YTD
Budget MTD Actual %
2023 Actual 2023 Balance Expended
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
EXECUTIVE
Select Board
100 4130 01 101 Select Board Stipends 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00
Administration
100 4130 02 102 Town Administration Payroll 179,410.00 13,774.32 90,989.69 88,420.31 50.72
100 4130 02 201 Supplies 4,500.00 331.64 1,596.64 2.903.36 35.48
100 4130 02 204 Association Dues 9,500.00 0.00 8,870.00 630.00 93.37
100 4130 02 208 Contracted services 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00
100 4130 02 209 Workshaps & Training 1,750.00 36.00 508.70 1.241.30 29.07
100 4130 02 216 Advertising 2,000.00 119.51 119.51 1,880.49 5.98
100 4130 02 224 Meetings & Meals 6,300.00 2,112.90 5,745.75 554.25 91.20
100 4130 02 225 Mileage 500.00 0.00 64.19 435.81 12.84
100 4130 02 230 Fed-Ex 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00
100 4130 02 231 Postage 13,000.00 2,050.63 5,550.52 7,449.48 42.70
100 4130 02 262 Town Report 3,500.00 0.00 2,947.00 553.00 84.20
100 4130 02 317 Service Contract (copier) 6,500.00 1,211.00 3,821.00 2,579.00 60.32
100 4130 02 319 Background Checks 500.00 141.00 235.00 265.00 47.00
100 4130 02 328 Town Meeting 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
Total Administration 230,210.00 19,777.00 120,548.00 109,662.00 52.36
Total Executive 242,210.00 19,777.00  120,548.00 121,662.00 49.77
ELECTION & REGISTRATION
100 4140 01 201 Supplies 2,500.00 0.00 1,640.61 859.39 65.62
100 4140 01 219 Ballot Clerks 1,600.00 0.00 975.00 525.00 65.00
100 4140 01 220 Maderator/Asst, Moderatar 900.00 0.00 900.00 0.00 100.00
100 4140 01 221 Meals 500.00 0.00 536.12 (36.12) 107.22
100 4140 01 301 Supervisors of the checklist 3.600.00 0.00 3,600.00 0.00 100.00
100 4140 01 308 Workshops & Training 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00
100 4140 01 317 Equipment Maintenance 625.00 0.00 0.00 625.00 0.00
Total Election & Registration 9,725.00 0.00 7,651.73 2,073.27 78.68
FINANCIAL ADMINSTRATION
FINANCE
100 4150 01 120 Finance Payroll 130,500.00 9,899.01 62,743.53 67,756.47 48.08
100 4150 01 204 Dues/Misc Exp. 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 0.00
100 4150 01 217 Audit 26,000.00 0.00 9,493.75 16,506.25 36.51
100 4150 01 306 Financial Software Lic/Training 5,000.00 0.00 2,052.75 2,947.25 41.06
100 4150 01 308 Workshops & Training Iﬁv {6{ 800.00 0.00 175.00 625.00 21.88
100 4150 01 401 Contracted Services m v, 20,000.00 58.00 8,529.08 11,470.92 42.65
100 4150 05 111 Finance-Treasurer Stipend 5,540.00 0.00 0.00 6,540.00 0.00
Total Finance 189,240.00 9,958.01 82,994,114 106,245.89 43.86
ASSESSING
100 4150 02 114 Assessing Payroll 8,301.00 637.20 4,382.68 3,818.32 52.80
100 4150 02 201 Assessing Supplies 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
100 4150 02 204 Dues/Misc Exp. 1,000.00 0.00 405.95 554.05 40.60
100 4150 02 218 Registry Expense 100.00 0.00 56.89 43.11 56.89
100 4150 02 304 Tax maps 4.,000.00 282.54 4,162.54 {162.54) 104.06
100 4150 02 308 Workshops & Training 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00
100 4150 02 316 Cell Phone Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 325.36 (325.36) 0.00
100 4150 02 317 Equipment Maintenance/Software 7.500.00 0.00 3,333.34 4,166.66 44.44
100 4150 02 401 Contracted Services 70.,000.00 5,125.00 19,037.50 50,962.50 27.20
Total Assessing 91,651.00 6,044.74 31,704.26 59,946.74 34.59
Town Clerk/Tax Coliector
100 4150 03 112 TC/TC Payroll 142,000.00 10,891.62 72,362.99 69,637.01 50.96
100 4150 03 201 Office Supplies 4,500.00 0.00 2,198.08 2,301.92 48.85
100 4150 03 204 Dues & Memberships 60.00 40.00 40.00 20.00 66.67
100 4150 03 209 Conventions 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 0.00
100 4150 03 218 Registry of Deeds 400.00 17.26 87.28 312.72 21.82
100 4150 03 223 Lien Notifications B600.00 0.00 82.50 517.50 13.75
100 4150 03 225 Mileage 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 0.00
100 4150 03 269 Restoration of records 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
100 4150 03 306 Computer Support-Service 11,780.00 0.00 11,117.90 662.10 94.38

100 4150 03 308 Workshops & Training 500.00 0.00 345.00 155.00 69.00



Run: 7/24/2023 at 1:01 PM

Total Town Clerk/Tax Collector
Total Financial Administration

COMPUTER SERVICES

100 4150 04 201 IT Supplies/Materials
100 4150 04 202 Cloud subscripitions
100 4150 04 205 Managed IT Services
100 4150 04 206 Telecom & Internet
Total Computer Services

LEGAL EXPENSES
100 4153 01 202 Legal Expenses
Total Legal Services

PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION

100 4155 01 171 Medicare

100 4155 01 173 New Hampshire Retirement
100 4155 01 174 Social Security

100 4155 01 176 Unemployment

100 4155 01 181 Insurance Buyout Program
100 4155 01 192 Life/AD&D

100 4155 01 193 Long-Term Disability

100 4155 01 194 Short-Term Disability

100 4155 01 195 Health/Dental Insurance
100 4155 01 196 HealthTrust HRA

100 4155 01 197 Misc. Fees

100 4155 01 198 Leave Compensation MEI;‘
100 4155 01 199 HealthTrust FSA

100 4155 02 188 Compensation Adjustments
Total Personnel

PLANNING & ZONING

PLANNING

100 4191 01 120 Planning Department Payroll
100 4191 G1 201 Supplies

100 4191 01 203 Legal Ads

100 4191 01 204 Duas & Memberships

100 4191 01 270 Rockingham Conservation District
100 4191 01 271 Rock. Planning Commission
100 4191 01 276 Special Projects

100 4191 01 306 Software License & Training
100 4191 01 308 Training

100 4191 01 318 Equipment

100 4191 01 319 Gas - Mileage

Total Planning

BUILDING INSPECTOR/CODE ENFORCEMENT
100 4181 02 122 Bl / CEO Department Payroll
100 4151 02 201 Supplies

100 4191 02 235 Fire Inspection Fees

100 4191 02 260 Plan Review

100 4191 02 266 Reference Materials

100 4191 02 306 Software License & Training
100 4191 02 308 Workshops & Training

100 4191 02 318 Equipment

100 4191 02 376 Vehicle Maintenance

Total Building Inspector/Code Enforcement

Total Planning & Zoning

GENERAL GOVT. BUILDINGS

100 4184 01 104 Fadilities Payroll

100 4194 01 222 MC Supplies

100 4194 01 314 MC Electricity

100 4194 01 315 MC Heat

100 4194 01 318 MC Telephone

100 4194 01 318 MC Equipment

100 4194 01 375 MC Building Maintenance/Repairs

Town of Stratham

For 6/30/2023

'&fdg‘imp

Page: 2
Dept YTD
Budget MTD Actual %
2023 Actual 2023 Balance Expended
163,840.00 10,948.88 86,233.75 77,606.25 52.63
444,731.00 26,951.63 200,932.12 243,798.88 45.18
7,000.00 4,260.61 14,075.38 (7,075.38) 201.08
14,000.00 0.00 0.00 14,000.00 0.00
80,000.00 4,992.00 30,734.50 49,265.50 38.42
7.,800.00 942.99 2,085.93 5,714.07 26.74
108,800.00 10,195.60 46,895.81 61,904.19 43.10
40,000.00 8,018.53 26,783.22 13,216.78 £66.96
40,000.00 8,018.53 26,783.22 13,216.78 66.96
50,000.00 3,510.92 22,808.50 27,181.10 45.62
572,000.00 43,614.91 291,105.72 280,894.28 50.89
138,000.00 9,858.18 64,506.06 73,493.94 46.74
2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00
83,000.00 0.00 18,914.86 64,085.14 22.79
7.100.00 0.00 3,217.50 3,882.50 45.32
12,000.00 Q.00 5,348.65 6,851.35 44 .57
13,500.00 0.00 5,970.30 7,529.70 44.22
350,000.00 0.00 158,043.14 191,956.86 45.16
15,000.00 12.77 5,525.67 9,474.33 36.84
600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 0.00
10,000.00 7,161.70 1715175 {7 151.05) 171.52
9,000.00 0.00 3,013.94 5,986.06 33.49
20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00
1,282,200.00 64,258.48 595,606.49 686,593.51 46.45
120,500.00 8,654.98 54,552.46 65,947.54 45.27
2,000.00 17.19 17.19 1,982.81 0.86
3,200.00 329.79 1,738.58 1.461.42 54.33
750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 0.00
500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
7,200.00 0.00 0.00 7.900.00 0.00
2,500.00 235.19 268.09 2.231.91 10.72
6,700.00 0.00 35332 6,366.68 4.97
1,600.00 55.00 55.00 1,545.00 3.44
950.00 0.00 0.00 950.00 0.00 -
100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00
146,700.00 9,292.15 56,964.64 89,735.36 38.83
133,718.00 4,630.38 44, 125.48 89,592.52
3,000.00 217.04 1,446.90 1,653.10 itan
500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00
1,750.00 232.25 232.25 1,517.75 13.27
9,500.00 160.00 493.34 9,006.66 5.19
1,800.00 0.00 420.00 1,380.00 23.33
1,200.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00
750.00 69.33 260.20 489.80 34.69
152,318.00 5,309.00 46,978.17 105,339.83 30.84
299,018.00 14,601.15 103,942.81 195,075.19 34.76
79,120.00 6,741.47 38,295.79 40,824.21 48.40
4.3060.00 385.09 3,039.87 1,260.13 70.69
26,200.00 0.00 12,817.08 13,382.92 48.92
12,000.00 0.00 11,696.62 303.38 97.47
7,000.00 927.83 4,583.73 2.416.27 65.48
3,200.00 182.74 1,039.44 2,160.56 32.48
30,500.00 2,232.52 19,006.16 11,493.84 62.32



Run: 7/24/2023 at 1:01 PM Town of Stratham

Page: 3
For 6/30/2023
Dept YTD
Budget MTD Actual %
2023 Actual 2023 Balance Expended
100 4194 02 375 Rental Property Maintenance 8,700.00 516.00 1,421.38 7,278.64 16.34
100 4194 04 314 Historical Soc. Electricity 1,500.00 0.00 533.31 966.69 356.55
100 4194 04 315 Historical Soc. Heat 4,800.00 587.01 3,742.18 1,057.82 77.96
100 4194 04 375 Historical Building Maintenance/Repairs 2,500.00 196.50 515.00 1,985.00 20.60
100 4194 06 240 Smyk Landscape Maintenance 3,200.00 0.00 0.00 3,200.00 0.00
Total General Govt. Buildings 183,020.00 11,769.16 96,690.54 86,329.46 52.83
CEMETERIES
100 4195 01 141 Cemetery Payroll 25,015.00 1,632.78 10,179.32 14,835.68 40.69
100 4185 01 222 Supplies 4,000.00 0.00 409.41 3,590.59 10.24
100 4195 01 240 Ground Maintenance 10,000.00 0.00 1,5658.00 8,442.00 15.58
100 4195 01 306 Computer Maintenance 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
100 4195 01 317 Equipment Maintenance 4,170.00 58.90 221.60 3,948.40 5.31
100 4195 01 318 Equipment 300.00 0.00 277.44 2256 92.48
100 4195 01 401 Contracted Services 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00
Total Cemeteries 45,485.00 1,691.68 12,645.77 32,839.23 27.80
INSURANCE
100 4196 01 190 Workers' Compensation 50,865.00 0.00 47,958.18 2.906.82 94.29
100 4196 01 248 Property & Liability Insurance 73,689.00 0.00 67,242.10 6,446.80 91.25
Total Insurance 124,554.00 0.00 115,200.28 9,353.72 92.49
OTHER GEN. GOVT.
100 4189 01 243 Town Ctr Water Contamination Expenses 12,000.00 14.37 2,787.07 9,212.93 23.23
Total Other Gen. Government 12,000.00 14.37 2,787.07 9,212.93 23.23
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,791,743.00  157,277.60 1,329,683.84 1,462,059.16 47.63
PUBLIC SAFETY
POLICE
PD Payroli
100 4210 01 130 Police Full Time Payroll 1,021,313.00 79,976.44  509,879.68 511,433.32 49,92
100 4210 01 133 Police-Holiday pay 32,638.00 467.70 935.40 31,702.60 2.87
100 4210 01 134 Prosecutor Payroll 38,840.00 2,987.58 19,419.27 19,420.73 50.00
100 4210 01 135 Palice Overtime 98,0680.00 3,911.47 34,462.63 64,597.37 34.79
100 4210 01 136 Pdlice - PT & ACO 40,000.00 1,050.00 4,047.00 35,953.00 10.12
Total Payroll 1,231,851.00 88,393.19 568,743.98 663,107.02 46.17
PD Operations
100 4210 02 201 PD Office Supplies 8,000.00 991.74 1,431.50 6,568.50 17.89
100 4210 02 226 Community Service Program 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 0.00
100 4210 02 278 Special Response Team (SERT) 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 100.00
100 4210 02 279 Donation Funded Expenses 0.00 2,031.00 2,031.00 (2.031.00) 0.00
100 4210 02 305 Technical Support 20,500.00 1,055.41 6,734.33 13,765.67 32.85
100 4210 02 308 Training & Dues 24,000.00 875.00 9,256.28 14,743.72 38.57
100 4210 02 310 Uniforms 13,000.00 112.00 4,166.44 8,833.56 32.05
100 4210 02 317 Equipment Repairs 3,000.00 274.99 1,807.63 1,192.37 60.25
100 4210 02 318 New Equipment 8,000.00 0.00 1,846.78 6,1563.22 23.08
100 4210 02 319 Gas & Qil 22,000.00 3,469.71 12,804.59 9,195.41 58.20
100 4210 02 376 Vehicle Maintenance 18,500.00 1,994.41 8,127.51 10,372.49 43.93
100 4210 02 888 PD Grant Paid Expenditures 0.00 6,093.00 6,019.62 (6,018.62) 0.00
Total PD Operations 120,500.00 16,897.26 56,725.68 63,774.32 47.08
PD Building
100 4210 03 314 Elactricity 9,000.00 0.00 3,938.84 5,061.16 43.76
100 4210 03 315 Heating 5,200.00 0.00 4,228.29 971.71 81.31
100 4210 03 3186 Telephone 7,500.00 138.78 1,336.16 6,163.84 17.82
100 4210 03 375 PD Building Maintenance 14,000.00 1,069.00 6,633.14 7.366.86 47.38
Total PD Building 35,700.00 1,207.78 16,136.43 19,563.57 45.20
Total Police 1,388,051.00 106,498.23  641,606.09 746,444.91 46.22
FIRE DEPARTMENT
FD Operations
100 4220 01 100 Fire Dept. Payroll 295,000.00 19,875.13 131,646.91 163,353.09 44.63
100 4220 01 130 FD Detail 5,000.00 750.00 2,162.50 2,837.50 43.25
100 4220 01 204 Dues 3,500.00 0.00 1,000.00 2,500.00 28.57
100 4220 01 222 Supplies 2,500.00 327.00 572.90 1,927.10 22,92

100 4220 01 228 EMS Supplies 15,000.00 337.91 4,649.32 10,350.68 31.00



Run: 7/24/2023 at 1:01 PM

100 4220 01 236 Fire Prevention

100 4220 01 243 Haz-Mat Start Team
100 4220 01 245 Insurance

100 4220 01 308 Training & Conferences
100 4220 01 310 Uniforms

100 4220 01 311 Gear

100 4220 01 316 Equipment Maintenance
100 4220 01 317 MV Maintenance

100 4220 01 318 New Equipment

100 4220 01 319 Gas & il

100 4220 01 323 Billing Expenses

Total FD Operations

FD Building

100 4220 02 240 Landscape Mainlenance

100 4220 02 246 Internet/IT Charges

100 4220 02 314 Electricity

100 4220 02 315 Heat

100 4220 02 316 Telephone

100 4220 02 375 Building Maintenance & Repairs
Total FD Building

Total Fire Department

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
100 4250 01 227 Emergency Management Expenses
Total Emergency Management

DISPATCH SERVICES
100 4289 01 316 Dispatch Phone Expense

Total Public Safety

PUBLIC WORKS

HIGHWAY

100 4312 01 140 Highway Payroll

100 4312 01 141 Highway Overtime

100 4312 01 142 Temporary Plow Drivers

100 4312 01 210 Hwy Vehicle Purchase

100 4312 01 211 Drainage

100 4312 01 222 Supplies

100 4312 01 224 Meals

100 4312 01 279 Substance Abuse Testing

100 4312 01 303 Rented Equipment

100 4312 01 3068 Computer Software Maintenance
100 4312 01 308 Training

100 4312 01 310 Uniforms

100 4312 01 314 Electricity

100 4312 01 315 Heating

100 4312 01 316 Telephone

100 4312 01 317 Equipment Repairs & Maintenance
100 4312 01 318 New Equipment & Signs

100 4312 01 319 Gas & Qil

100 4312 01 320 Road Paint

100 4312 01 321 Salt

100 4312 01 322 Aggregate

100 4312 01 325 Paving & Road Reconstruction
100 4312 01 375 Building Maintenance

100 4312 01 401 Contracted Services

Total Highway

STREET LIGHTING
100 4316 01 314 Street Lighting

Total Public Works

SANITATION
SOLID WASTE COLL, & DISPOSAL

Town of Stratham

Page: 4
For 6/30/2023
Dept YTD
Budget MTD Actual Yo
2023 Actual 2023 Balance Expended
3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
3,800.00 0.00 3,765.00 35.00 99.08
1,232.00 0.00 0.00 1,232.00 0.00
6,000.00 135.00 609.00 5,391.00 10.15
3,000.00 297.00 946.42 2,053.58 31.55
25,000.00 0.00 1,055.01 23,944 .99 4.22
16,000.00 1,316.00 {23,769.79) 39,769.79 {148.55)
34,000.00 5,184.61 21,754.72 12,245.28 63.98
30,000.00 909.99 2,096.39 27,903.61 6.99
7,000.00 46.35 2,434.05 4,565.95 34.77
13,000.00 923.13 4,792.16 8,207.84 36.86
463,032.00 30,102.12 153,714.59 309,317.41 33.20
1.500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00
7.000.00 1,005.94 2,507.09 4,492.91 35.82
20,000.00 0.00 8,291.25 11.708.75 41.48
20,000.00 1,077.32 14,558.54 5.441.46 72.79
8,000.00 261.53 2,147.89 5,852.11 26.85
13,500.00 1.746.79 10,014.10 3,485.90 74.18
70,000.00 4,091.58 37,518.87 32,481.13 53.60
533,032.00 34,193.70  191,233.46 341,798.54 35.88
9,500.00 0.00 0.00 9,500.00 0.00
9,500.00 0.00 0.00 9,500.00 0.00
1.000.00 0.00 406.48 593.52 40.65
1,931,583.00 140,691.93  833,246.03 1,098,336.97 43.14
279,845.00 18,253.76 111,471.49 168,373.51 39.83
25,000.00 350.04 16,223.14 8,776.86 64.89
10,000.00 0.00 2,293.15 7,706.85 22.93
33,161.00 0.00 0.00 33,161.00 0.00
8.000.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00
6,500.00 796.69 4.177.70 2,322.30 64.27
1.500.00 0.00 1,368.56 133.44 91.10
1,800.00 92.25 439.50 1,360.50 24.42
7.000.00 323.47 5,086.73 (IR R 72.67
1,734.00 0.00 613.70 1,120.30 35.39
1,500.00 100.00 100.00 1,400.00 6.67
8,000.00 514.94 515.22 5,484.78 8.59
8.750.00 0.00 5,480.33 3,269.67 62.63
2,500.00 0.00 1,275.14 1.224.86 51.01
4,208.00 203.19 1,030.65 3,177.35 24,49
55,000.00 8,832.50 6,780.16 48,219.84 12.33
8,400.00 244.36 3,660.78 5,739.22 38.94
39,200.00 1,380.02 15,152.33 24,047.67 38.65
10,080.00 590.33 590.33 9,489.67 5.86
55,300.00 0.00 0.00 55,300.00 0.00
8.500.00 225.00 4,291.90 4,208.10 50.49
150.000.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00
20,000.00 1,054.50 21,321.22 (1.321.22) 106.61
3.500.00 0.00 575.00 2,925.00 16.43
748,478.00 32,960.75  202,445.03 546,032.97 27.05
10,750.00 464.97 3,670.12 7.179.88 33.21
759,228.00 33,425.72  206,015.15 553,212.85 27.13




Run: 7/2412023 at 1:01 PM Town of Stratham

Page: 5
For 6/30/2023
Dept YTD
Budget MTD Actual %

2023 Actual 2023 Balance Expended
100 4323 01 142 Sanitaticn Payroll 45,623.00 3,212.56 18,850.24 26,772.76 41.32
100 4323 01 212 MSW/Recycling Coll, & Disposal 907,370.00 78,272.80  353,276.14 5564,093.86 38.93
100 4323 01 242 Hazardous Waste Collection 5,277.00 0.00 0.00 5,277.00 0.00
100 4323 01 247 Landfill Closure Costs 12,000.00 480.58 4,831.58 7.,168.42 40.26
100 4323 01 309 Transfer Station Expenses 95,081.00 11,890.06 35,665.22 59,415.78 37.51
100 4323 01 314 Electricity 810.00 0.00 429.33 380.67 53.00
100 4323 01 317 Materials & Suppliss 6,144.00 777.94 1,052.64 5,091.36 17.13
Total Solid Waste Coll. & Disposal 1,072,305.00 94,633.94 414,105.15 658,199.85 38.62
PUBLIC WORKS (OTHER)
100 4339 01 327 Public Works Commission 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00
Total PW QOther 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00
HEALTH
ANIMAL CONTROL
100 4414 01 244 Impoundment Fees/Supplies 600.00 0.00 574.41 25.59 95.74
Total Animal Control 600.00 0.00 574.41 25.59 95.74
PEST CONTROL
100 4414 02 326 Pest Control Coniracted Services 54,144.00 6,500.00 13,000.00 41,144.00 24.01
PUBLIC SERVICE AGENCIES
100 4415 01 000 Annie's Angels 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00
100 4415 01 001 American Red Cross 800.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 0.00
100 4415 01 351 Seacoast Mental Health Ctr. 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00
100 4415 01 352 Waypoint 6,700.00 0.00 0.00 6,700.00 0.00
100 4415 01 353 Haven 4,250.00 0.00 0.00 4,250.00 0.00
100 4415 01 354 Big Brother & Big Sister 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
100 4415 01 355 Community Action Prog. 4,500.00 0.00 0.00 4,500.00 0.00
100 4415 01 356 Retired & Senior Volunteer Prog 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
100 4415 01 359 AIDS Response of the Seacoast 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
100 4415 01 360 Rockingham County Nutrition Program 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00
100 4415 01 361 Seacoast Shipyard Assoc. 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00
100 4415 01 362 Crossroads House 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
100 4415 01 366 Child Advocacy Center 1.250.00 0.00 0.00 1,250.00 0.00
100 4415 01 368 Families First 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00
100 4415 01 369 Womenade of Greater Sguamscott 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 Q.00
100 4415 01 370 Transportation Assisiance for Seacoast Gitizens 3.000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
Total Public Service Agencies 38,700.00 0.00 0.00 38,700.00 0.00
WELFARE
DIRECT ASSISTANCE
100 4445 01 314 Public Asst. Electricity 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 1,250.00 0.00
100 4445 01 340 Public Asst, Food 150.00 0.00 {15.59) 165.59 {10.39)
100 4445 01 341 Public Asst. Heat 1,500.00 0.00 807.65 692.35 53.84
100 4445 01 343 Public Asst. Medical-Pharmacy 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00
100 4445 01 344 Public Asst. Rent-Mortgage 7,500.00 0.00 1,438.30 6.061.70 19.18
100 4445 01 345 Public Asst. Misc. Assistance 875.00 0.00 1,400.00 {525.00) 160.00
Total Direct Assistance 11,375.00 0.00 3,630.36 7,744.64 31.92
CULTURE & RECREATION
PARKS
100 4520 01 144 Parks Payroll 59,795.00 2,790.74 16,285.44 43.509.56 27.24
100 4520 01 201 Supplies 700.00 1.437.93 1,488.88 (738.88) 212.70
100 4520 01 240 Grounds Maintenance 47,000.00 14,854.93 27,811.78 19,188.22 59.17
100 4520 01 308 Training 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 0.00
100 4520 01 310 Uniforms 750.00 0.00 159.99 590.01 24.33
100 4520 01 314 Electricity 8,300.00 0.00 2.417.79 5,882.21 29.13
100 4520 01 317 Eguipment Maintenance 4,800.00 1,322.54 1,322.54 3,477.46 27.55
100 4520 01 330 Park Maintenance Supplies 5,800.00 2,848.70 3,9198.33 1,880.67 67.57
100 4520 01 376 Park Vehicle Maintenance 5,000.00 362.44 1,281.34 3.718.66 25.63
100 4520 01 377 All Other Park Building Maintenance 9,000.00 1,906.79 3,901.93 5.098.07 43.35
Total Parks 141,495.00 25,524.07 58,589.02 82,905.98 41.441
RECREATION
100 4520 02 145 Recreation Payroll 140,595.00 9,874.80 68,524.74 72,070.26 48.74
100 4520 02 201 Office Expenses 1,200.00 1.99 739.87 460.13 61.66

100 4520 02 204 Memberships 0.00 0.00 25.00 (25.00) 0.00



Run: 7/24/2023 at 1:01 PM Town of Stratham Page: 6
For 6/30/2023

Dept YTD
Budget MTD Actual %

2023 Actual 2023 Balance Expended
100 4520 02 273 Seniors Programming 20,000.00 3.650.24 10,747.02 9,252.98 53.74
100 4520 02 316 Cellphone Reimbursement 1.302.00 0.00 325.36 976.64 24.99
100 4520 02 319 Gas-Mileage 650.00 0.00 81.22 568.78 12.50
100 4520 02 324 Brochures/Newsletters 1,600.00 91.99 820.98 679.02 54,73
100 4520 02 328 Special Events 3,000.00 0.00 1,397.92 1,602.08 46.60
Total Recreation 168,247.00 13,619.02 82,662.11 85,584.89 49.13
Total Parks & Recreation 309,742.00 39,143.09 141,251,113 168,490.87 45.60
LIBRARY
100 4550 01 147 Library Payroll 450,442.00 32,012.34  211,899.81 238,542.19 47.04
100 4550 01 249 Non-salary expenses 110,400.00 0.00 55,200.00 55,200.00 50.00
Total Library 560,842.00 32,012.34  267,099.81 293,742.19 47.62
PATRIOTIC PURPOSES
100 4583 01 238 Flags 500.00 313.48 1,215.48 {715.43) 243.10
100 4583 01 277 Patriotic Misc. 1,200.00 480.00 480.00 720.00 40.00
Total Patriotic Purposes 1,700.00 793.48 1,695.48 4.52 99.73
CONSERVATION
100 4611 01 207 Conservation Commission 5.,000.00 0.00 550.00 4,450.00 11.00
HERITAGE COMMISSION
100 4619 01 215 Heritage Administrative Expenses 400.00 0.00 150.00 250.00 37.50
100 4619 01 302 Survey/Software-Heritage 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00
100 4619 01 308 Training/Conferences 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00
100 4619 01 313 Veterans/Engraving 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00
TOTAL EXPENSES 5,700.00 0.00 150.00 5,550.00 2.63
ECONOMIC DEV. COMM.
TOWN CENTER REVITALIZATION
ENERGY COMMISSION
100 4660 02 281 Energy Commission Expenses 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00
DEBT SERVICE
PRINCIPLE - LONG TERM
100 4711 00 400 Debt Service Principal 570,000.00  200,000.00  570,000.00 0.00 100.00
INTEREST - LONG TERM / \\,
100 4721 00 401 Debt Service Inlerest 97.,325.00 50,641.25  109,055.00 ) {11,730.00) 112.05

CAPITAL OUTLAY N\ ,/"I
LAND &M%b‘" &ve ) /

MACH/EQUIP/VEHICLE CIF EXPENSES

100 4902 20 900 Town-wide Computer Replacement-prior 3,156.94 0.00 0.00 3.156.94 0.00
100 4902 20 901 Town-wide Computer Replacement-current 5.000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00
100 4902 21 900 Permitting software/digital storage-prior 10.000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00
100 4802 22 900 Town-wide Technology - prior 12,833.13 0.00 0.00 12,833.13 0.00
100 4802 22 901 Town-wide Technology - current 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00
100 4802 23 900 Police Station Sclar Array Buyout - prior 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00
100 4902 23 901 Police Station Solar Array Buyout - current 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00
100 4902 24 900 Traffic Control Program - prior 7.202.00 0.00 0.00 7,202.00 0.00
100 4902 24 901 Traffic Control Program - current 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00
100 4902 25 900 MC Town vehicles - prior 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00
100 4902 26 900 PD Cruiser Replacement - prior 7.460.49 0.00 7,460.49 0.00 100.00
100 4902 26 901 PD Cruiser Replacement - current 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 100.00
TOTAL MACH/EQUIP/VEHICLE CIP EXPENSES 112,652.56 0.00 32,460.49 80,192.07 28.81
BUILDING CIP EXPENSES

100 4903 30 900 Library Interior Improvements-prior 13,166.00 0.00 0.00 13,166.00 0.00
100 4903 30 901 Library Interior Improvements-current 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00
100 4903 31 901 Municipal Center Improvements-current 15,000.00 0.00 14,811.00 189.00 98.74
TOTAL BUILDINGS 48,166.00 0.06 14,811.00 33,355.00 30.75

ALL OTHER/NON-BUILDING CIP EXPENSES
100 4909 00 000 0.00 (702.70) {(702.70) 702.70 0.00
100 4909 40 900 Cemelery Improvements - prior 14.772.40 0.00 0.00 14,772.40 0.00



Run: 7/24/2023 at 1:01 PM Town of Stratham Page: 7
For 6/30/2023

Dept YTD
Budget MTD Actual %

2023 Actual 2023 Balance Expended
100 4909 50 900 Parks Facilities Improvements - prior 27,359.37 0.00 0.00 27,359.37 0.00
100 4909 50 901 Parks Fagilities Improvements - current 17,000.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 0.00
100 4909 51 900 Parks Rds/Parking Lot Improvements - prior 16,000.00 0.00 0.00 16,000.00 0.00
100 4909 59 900 Parks-Open Space Connectivity Plan - priar 45,000.00 15,460.00 33,266.00 11,734.00 73.92
100 4909 59 901 Parks-Open Space Connectivity Plan - current 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00
100 4909 60 900 SHP Facilities & Fields Improvments - prior 62,572.45 0.00 0.00 62,572.45 0.00
100 4909 60 901 SHP Facilities & Fields Improvments - current 17,000.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 0.00
100 4909 61 900 SHP Roads/Parking Improvments - prior 28,000.00 0.00 0.00 28,000.00 0.00
100 4909 69 900 SHP Area Plan - prior 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00
100 4909 69 901 SHP Area Plan - current 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00
100 4809 71 900 Town-wide Parking Lots Paving - prior 81,000.00 0.00 0.00 81,000.00 0.00
100 4809 72 901 Road Reconstruction Program - current 370,000.00 170,490.85 170,490.85 199,509.15 46.08
100 4809 74 900 Bike & Ped Transp lmprovements- prior 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00
100 4909 75 900 State Roadway/intersection Proj Partic- prior 75,000.00 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 0.00
100 4909 81 900 Stormwater Planning - prior 28,000.00 0.00 0.00 28,000.00 0.00
100 4909 81 901 Stormwater Planning - current 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00
100 4909 91 900 Revaluation Expenses - prior 60,206.83 0.00 0.00 60,206.83 0.00
100 4909 91 901 Revaluation Expenses - current 24,000.00 0.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.00
100 4909 92 900 PFAS Response & Remediation - prior 90,934.00 2,635.49 90,834.00 0.00 100.00
100 4909 92 901 PFAS Response & Remediation - current 105,000.00 10,346.68 10,346.68 94,653.32 9.85
100 4909 99 900 Master Plan Update - prior 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00
100 4909 99 901 Master Plan Update - current 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00
TOTAL ALL OTHER/NON-BUILDING CIP EXPENSES 1,164,845.05 198,230.32  304,334.83 860,510.22 26.13
TOTAL CIP EXPENSES 1,325,663.61 198,230.32 _ 351,606.32 974,057.29 26.52
TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET ONLY 8,211,188.00  755,119.35 3,890,056.36 4,321,131.64 47.38
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL RES. FUND
100 4915 04 295 FD Cap Reserves 110,000.00  110,000.00  110,000.00 0.00 100.00
100 4815 04 330 Highway Vehicle Cap Res 125,000.00  125,000.00  125,000.00 0.00 100.00
100 4916 01 599 Heritage Preservation 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 100.00
TOTAL TRANSFERS TGO CAPITAL RES. FUND 285,000.00  285,000.00  285,000.00 0.00 100.00
PAYMENTS TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS
100 4933 11 6868 CMS Assessments 0.00 996,814.00 5,980,879.00 (5.9680,879.00) 0.00
100 4933 11 687 SMS Assessments 0.00 875,652.00 5,275,652.00 (5.275.852.00) 0.00
TOTAL OTHER PAYMENTS 0.00 1,872,466.00 11,256,531.00 {11,256,531.00) 0.00

INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENTS
TOTAL GRANTS & INSURANCE

GRAND TOTAL ALL EXPENSES 9,821,851.61 3,110,815.67 15,783,193.68 (5,961,342.07) 160.69




2023 Mid-year Budget Recap with June end of month budget report
Revenues - solid
Highlights-
*Note Lindt abatements of $335,099
*Scrap metal recycling revenue unexpected decrease -- Budget $5,500 Actual $350
*Interest earnings significant increase -- Budget $40,000 Actual 120,860
Refer to $16,231,067 bottom line, minus net taxes (taxes less abatements) =
$1,337,869 actual offsetting revenues (36% ytd)

Add in Rooms and Meals $683,285 (18.5%) not received until late fall = 54.5% mid-year

Expenditures - solid
Individual budget lines yellow highlighted to note reaching, at, or exceeded budget.
Other notes:

*Personnel Administration & Wage lines all on target

1. BI—CEO PR is at 33%; STD benefit offsets the actual;
current expense for MRl is $17,152 posted in Leave Compensation line (actual STD
benefits received are $16,437), so loss is minimized

2. FD PR tracking under budget (44.63%) despite reduction in 2023 budget over 2022

*Finance Administrator error in Debt Service Long Term Interest — current actual shows over
budget by $11,730 (I used the future year amount from debt service schedule for one of the loans)



MS 535 & 2023 Tax Rate

Reference 2022 MS 535 pg 8 “Unassigned Fund Balance” ending balance $4,013,762

Fund Equity
2440 Non-spendable Fund Balance . 526,490 525,469
2450 Restrictad Fund Balance _ $0 $0
2460 Cormitted Fund Balance 51 78070 $583,212
2480 Assigned Fund Balance ) 50 549531
2530 Unassigned Fund Balance $a000686 . $4013762 -
Explanation: Restated for audit adjustments '
Fund Equity Subtotal $4,434,246 $4,671,874

Subtract $750,000 used to set tax rate = adjusted unassigned fund balance *$3,263,762, amount now
available when setting 2023 tax rate.

Reference 2022 Tax Rate pg 4 Fund Balance Retention Guidelines current amount retained *$3,263,762

TR ey IR i

Current Amount Retained (9.46%) e g, 2 $3,263,762
17% Retained (Maximum Recommended) - $5,862,938
10% Retained 43,448,787
8% Retalned $2,759,030
5% Retained (Minimum Recommended) $1,724,393

Because of audit adjustment 2023 MS 535 references adjusted beginning Fund Balance — should be
$3,296,531.

At 2022 year end close 2023 MS 535 ending Unassigned Fund Balance = $3,992,537 (this is also net of
$750,000 fund balance used in 2022 tax rate and auditor adjustment) and is the amount available for
setting 2023 tax rate in November.

Fund Equity

2440 """ Non-spendablo Fund Beianos T 25,468 o 0 ¢
i 2450 Reastricted Fund Balance ] T ) 0 ;E.Elm
2460 CommitedFundBalance §sgaaiz $647.550 |
...3490 ____ Assigned Fund Balance o _ $49,531 $45,845
2530 linassigned Fund Balance ¥ };, A U (1- $4,04Gc5;"5"1-m ---------- MEEEQTEEE
MMMMMMMMMMMMMMM R mE‘{Eianaﬁan: Beginning balance restafsd for audit adjustiments
Fund Equity Subtotal | S4704743  $4689 632

*Note pg. 4 of MS 535 for Capital Outlay Budget v Actual.

* 2022 year end (Operating Budget Only) $8,070,185 minus actual $8,002,783 = $67,402 (.8%)



New Hampshire 2023

Department of
Revenue Administration MS-535
Financial Report of the Budget
Stratham

For the period ending December 31, 2022

PREPARER'S EFILE CERTIFICATION
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined the information contained in this form and to the best
of my belief it is true, correct and complete.

Matthew R. Murray

GOVERNING BODY CERTIFICATION
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined the information contained in this form and to the best
of my belief it is true, correct and complete.

Name Position ) \ _ ign )

TN b, e cas gizinf :S‘é’w)”gcf’ /.@:smp ettsf Koty ol
FUAAS U s A SELEe, GoAVLD / Q% L

This form must be signed, scanned, and uploaded to the Municipal Tax Rate Selting Portal:

https:/fwww,proptax. org/

For assistance please contact:
NH DRA Municipal and Property Division
(603) 230-5090
http:/fwww.revenue.nh.gov/mun-pro

Tt PG Page 1 of 10



it -

manan

New Hampshire 2023
Departmepr of . MS- 535
Revenue Administration
Expenditures
Account Purpose Voted Appropriatians Actual Expenditures
General Government "
4130-4139 Executive ) $210,823 $225,637
4140-4149 Efectlon, Ragistration, and Vital Statistics $12,000 $19,150
4150-4151 Financial Administration . $500,842 $478,434
4152 Revaluation of Property ) $0 $0
4153 Legal Expenss ’ $30,000 $44,140
4155-4159  Personnel Administration o ) $1.410,729 $1,161,974
41914193 Planning and Zoning N - $259,566 o $239,900
4194 General Government Buildings . $175,870 e wﬁ%éu‘é’ﬁ
Expfanation: includes 810,913 of Board Agshts To Expend
4195 Cemeteries $58,711 ) l §52T;g8
4106 Insurance $114.761 T A s
4157 Advertislng and Regional Assaciation. $0 %0
4199 Other Gensral Government : $2,500 o $285,373
Explanation: includes $15,000 of Board Agents To Expend
General Government Subtotal $2,782,802 $2,781,622
Public Safety ) ]
4210-4314 " Polive $1,290,517 $1,364,883
Explanafion: Includes $7,846 of Board Agents To Expend
42154218 Ambulance $20,000 $7.353
42204298 Fire ' $516,940 $443,853
424044249 Building Inspection 50 $0
4280-4288  Emergency Management $9,638 56,444
4299 Other (Inciuding Gommunications) $1,000 “sa53
Public Safety Subtotal $1,847,005 " $1,813,486

Airpori/Aviation Center

e st 7

43014303 Airport Operations $0 g0

- Airport/Aviation Center Subtotal ' %0 CT—— ﬁ}w
Highways and Streets

4311 Administration ' ko - $0

4312 Highways and Sirests $700.818 $802,211

4313 Bridges $0 %0

4316 Street Lighting $10,000 T saen0

4319 Other 50 Y
o Highways and Streets Subtotal $710,816 T 11207

Page 2 of 10



Revenue Administration

Purpose

New Hampshire 2023
D rt t of
epartment o MS-535

Expenditures

Voted Appropriations

Actual Expenditures

Account
Sanitation
4321 Administration $41,000 $41,010
4323 Solid Waste Collaction $1,042 627 $956,918
4324 Solid Waste Disposal $0 $0
4325 Solid Waste Claanup $0 $0
4326-4328  Sewags Collsction and Disposal %0 $0
4329 Cther Sanitation $0 50
Sanitatian Subtotal $1,083,627 $997,028
Water Distribution and Treatment
4331 Administration $1 50
4332 Water Services $o $0
4335 Watar Treatmeant $0 $0
43384339 Water Congervation and Other 50 $0
Water Distributlon and Treatment Subtotal $1 $0
Electric
4351-4352  Administraticn and Generation $0 $0
4353 Purchase Costs $0 %0
4354 Electric Equipmant Maintenance $0 $0
4350 Other Electric Costs $0 $0
Electric Subtotal $0 50
Health
4411 Administration $600 $0
4414 Pest Control $54,144 $45,830
4415-4419  Health Agencies, Hospitals, and Other $39,820 $38,120
Health Subtotal ' $94,364 $83,950
Welfare
4441-4442  Adiministration and Direct Assistance $11,375 $6,733
4444 Intergovernmental Welfare Paymants $0 30
4445-4443  Vendor Payments and Other $0 $0
Welfare Subtotal $11,375 $6,733
Gulture and Recreation
4520-4529  Parks and Recreation $286,357 $290,034
4550-4559 Library $534,748 $507,627
4583 Patriofic Purposes $1,700 $574
4589 Other Cuiture and Recreation $0 $0
Culture and Recreation Subtotal $822,805 $799,135

Page 3 of 10



New Hampshire 2023
Department of

Revenue Administration MS-535
Expenditures
Account Purpose Voted Appropriations Actual Expenditures
Conservation and Developmant )
4811-4612 Administration and Purchasing of Natural Resourcas $5,000 $634‘
4819 Other Conservation $5,700 $2,604
Explanation: Includes $1,750 of Board Agents Ta Expend
46314632 Redevelopment and Housing ' 50 "0
4651-4659  Economic Davelopment , $1,200 $0
Conservation and Development Subtotal $11,900 %3,328
Debt Service
4711 Long Term Bonds and Notes - Pringipal $570,00¢ $570,000
4721 Long Term Bonds and Notes - Interast $135,400 $135,400
4723 Tax Anticipation Notes - Inferest $0 $od
4790-4799  Other Debt Service $0 30
Debt Service Subtotal ’ $705,400 $705,400
Capital Outlay
4501 Land $0 $0
4902 Machinery, Veticles, and Equipment $394,000 $60,659
4903 Buiidings $22,000 $31,834
4909 Improvements Cther than Buildings $407,000 $222 133
Capital Qutlay Subtotal $823,000 $314,626
Operating Transfers Qut
4612 To Special Revenus Fund $0 $0
4913 To Capitai Projects Fund ' $o $0
4914A To Prapriatary Fund - Airport $0 $0
4914E To Proprietary Fund - Eleckic $0 $0
49140 To Proprietary Fund - Othor $0 40
49148 To Proprietary Fund - Sewer $0 $0
4974W To Propretary Fund - Water ) $0 - - $0
4815 To Capital Reserve Fund $290,000 $290,000
4916 To Expendable Trusts/Fiduciary Funds $0 50
4917 To Health Maintenance Trust Funds $0 $0
4918 To Non-Expendable Trust Funds $0 $0
4819 To Fiduglary Funds $0 50
Operating Transfers Out Subtotal $290,000 $290,000

Payments o Other Governments

4931 Taxes Assessed for County 50 $1,345,872
4932 Taxes Assessed for Village District $0 $0
4633 Taxes Assessed for Local Education $0 §21,941,711
4934 Taxes Assessed for State Education $0 $2,017,101
4939 Payments to Other Governmenis $0 7 o %BM

Payments to Other Governments Subtota) $25,304,684

120408 Stratham 20273 M

Page 4 of 10



New Hampshire 2023
Department of MS-5 35
Revenue Administration =
Expenditures

: Total Bofore Payments to Other Governments $9183,485  $8,607.400 L
, Plus Payments to Other Governments $26,304,684,
f Plus Commitments to Other Governments from Tax Rats $25,304,684 ,
i Less Proprietary/Spaecial Funds $370,000 $7,353é

Total General Fund Expenditures $34,117,869 $33,004,740

120404 Sratharn 2025 MELESE FA2ROZE 14801 B Page 50of10



$it!

New Hampshire
Department of

Revenue Administration

2023
MS-535

i

Revenues

Actual Revenues

Account Source of Revenues Estimated Revenues
Taxes
3110 Property Taxes $0 $29,780,803
3120 Land Use Change Tax - General Fund 30 30
3121 Land Use Change Taxes {Gonservation) 30 $0
3180 Resident Tax $0 $0
3188 Yiald Tax $500 $o
3188 Payment in Lieu of Taxes $0 $0
3187 Excavation Tax $0 $0
3189 Other Taxes 50 $0
3190 Interest and Penalties on Delinquent Taxes $30,000 $29. 136
9051 Inventory Penalties %0 $0
Taxes Subtotal $30,500 $29,810,029
Licenses, Permits, and Fees
3210 Businass Licenses and Permits $44,955 $44,952
3220 Motor Vehicle Permil Fees $1,875,000 $2,040,121
3230 Building Permits $155,000 $146,398
3290 Othar Licenses, Permits, and Fess $8,500 $8,691
3311-8319  From Federal Government $C $0
Licensas, Permits, and Feas Subtotal $2,083,455 $2,240,172
State Sources
3351 Municipal Ald/Shared Revenues $0 %0
3352 Meals and Raoms Tax Distribution $683,285 $683,285
3363 Highway Block Grant $176,859 $176,170
3354 Watar Pellution Grant $0 50
3355 Housing and Community Development $0 $0
3356 State and Federal Foresl Land Reimbursement $0 $0
3357 Floed Control Reimbursement $0 $0
3359 Cther (Including Railroad Tax) 526,264 $520,435
3379 Frem Other Governments $0 $0
State Sources Subtatal $886,408 $1,379,800
Charges for Services
3401-3408  incoma from Departments $141,044 $142 565
3409 Other Charges $18¢,000 3171494
Charges for Services Subtotal $321,044 $314,059
Miscellaneous Revanues
3501 Sale of Municipal Property $16,000 $2_,480
3502 Interest an Investments $5,000 $11,395
3503-3509 Qther $60,600 $96,395
Miscellanecus Revenues Subtotal $81,600 $110,270

PZ0400 Shratham 3 RIRBRE FHIRUGES 14 P

._ Page & of“;llbm



f*% Ngw H;m%ihi;e 2023
e epantment o
-,-y} Revenue Administration M 3'53 5

Revenues

Account Source of Revenues

Estimated Revenues

Actual Revenues

Interfund Operating Transfers in

3912 From Special Revenus Funds $370,000 $7,353
3913 From Capital Projects Funds $0 $o0
30144 From Enterprise Funds: Airport (Offsat) $0 $0
3914E From Enterprise Funds: Electric (Offsel) %0 $0
39140 From Erferprise Funds: Other (Offset) $0 $0
39145 From Enterprise Funds: Sewer (Offset) $0 $0
3914w Fror Enferprise Funds: Water (Offsat) $0 $0
3915 " From Capital Reserve Funds $0 $35,500
Explanation: Includes $35,509 of Board Agenits To Expend
3018 From Trust and Fiduciary Funds $0 $0
3917 Ffon;%onsewatian Furds 50 $0
‘M - Interfund Operating Transfers In Subtatal $370,000 $42.862
Other Financing Sources

3934 Procseds from Long Term Bonds and Notes $0 $0
Other Financing Sources Subtotal $0 $0

Less Proprictaty/Special Funds $370,000 $7,353§
Plus Property Tax Commitment from Tax Rate $30,288,382 F

Total General Fund Revenues $33,691,389 $33,889,929

¥ Stratharny K2T RMIASE 101GET 14840 P

Page 7 of 10



New Hampshire 2023
Department of -
Revenue Administration MS"535

Balance Sheet

Description Starting Balance

Ending Balance

Account
Current Assets
1010 Cash and Equivalents $15,003,732 $15,600,829
Explanation: Beginning balance restated for audit adjustments
1030 Investments 521,141 321493
1080 Tax Receivable $793,925 $467,042
1110 Tax Liens Receivable $60,843 $75,419
1150 Accounts Recelvable %0 $1,493
1260 Dug from Other Governments $5,849 $196,504
Explanation: Beginning balance restated for audit adlustments
1310 Due from Other Funds ' ' $208,570 $255,492
Expianatfon: Beginning balance restated for auolf adlustmants
1400 Othar Gurrent Assets §0 50
1670 ;2:5:8%01 Property (Subject to $0 30
Explanation: Beginning balance restated for audit adjustmeants
Current Assets Subtotal $16,094,060 $16,708,372
Gurrant Liabilitles )
2020 Warrants and Accounts Payable $389,795 $352,834
Explanation: Beginning balance restated for sudit adjustments
2030 Compensated Absences Payable $0 $o
. 2050 Contracts Payable ) $0 $0
__u- 2070 Due to Gthar Govemments ' $0 $0
- 275 Due to Scheol Districts $10,882,15¢ $11,268,531
2080 Dua to Other Funds $345,961 $o
2220 Deferred Revenus $107.402 $409,075
2230 Notes Payable - Current $0 S0
2270 Otter Payable 30 0
Current Liabilities Subtotal $11,389,317 $12,018,440
Fund Equity
2440 Non-spendable Fund Balance 325,469 30
2450 Restricted Fund Balance %0 $0
2480 Cornmitted Fund Balance $583,212 $647.550
2490 Assigned Fund Balancs $46,531 $46,845
2530 Unassigned Fund Balance $4,046,531 $3,992,537
Explanation: Beginning balance restated for sudit adjustments
Fund Equity Subtotat $4,704,743 54,689,932

120400 Shratharn P23 RSE3N 7

CNTUTD 44 P

280710



New Hampshire 2023
Depariment of
Revenue Administration MS -535

Tax Commitment

Source County Village Local Education State Education Other Property Tax

MS-535 $1,345.872 LA $21,941,711 $2,017,101 $0 $29,760,803
Commitment $1,345,872 $0 $21,941,711 $2,017,101 $30,288,382
Difference $0 $0 $¢ $0 {§507,489)

General Fund Balahce Sheet Reconciliation

Tetal Revenues $33,880,820

Total Expenditures . $33,904,740
Change ($14,811)

Ending Fund Equity $4,589,932
Beginning Fund Equity $4,704,743
Change ($14,811)

AT ) Page 9 of 10

PRGN Bhrathem 2000 MSLRS



New Hampshire
Department of
Revenue Administration

2023

MS-535

Long Term Debt

Original  Annual Finat

Description {Purpose} Obligation  fnstallment Rate Payment Start of Year Issued Retired End of Year
2018 Serles B Refunding Bond (General - Refunding)

$2,000,000 $200,000 5.10% 2028 $1,420,000 30 $200,000  $1 220,000
Censervation Bond (General)

$2,375,000 $120,000 2.1-51% 2033 $1.415,000 $0 $120,000  $1.295,000
Munlcipal Safety Complex Bond (General)

$5,000,000 $250,000 2.5-4.25% 2024 $750,000 $0 $250,000 $560,000

$9,375,000 $3,585,000 $0 $570,000 $3,015,000

§ 20400 Strathars MIPE S8

~ Page

10 0f 10



Town of Stratham
FY2023 Proposed Budget
Estimated Tax Impact

2021 Tax
Description Arth Budget Art# 2022 Budget Artd 2023 Proposed $ Change Impact
Operating Budget Appropriations 6 7,889,120 6 8,050,185 8,211,188 161,003 5.07
Capital Improvements Program (CIP) 9 499,000 9 473,000 663,000 190,000 0.41
Capital Improvements funded by other 13214 132,500 13814 370,000 - (370,000) 0.00
Capital Reserve Funds 10 400,000 10 290,000 285,000 (5,000) 0.18
Accrued Benefits Trust 2 15000 12
Total Appropriations 8,935,620 9,183,185 9,159,188 (23,997) 5.65
Estimated revenues (3,800,000)
EMS Special Revenue Fund (370,000) 370,000
Revised Revenues (3,385,833) (3,403,007)
Anticipated Use of Fund Balance (650,000) (600,000) (650,000) (50,000) -0.40
Use of Fund balance to offset CRF Article (150,000) (150,000) (150,000) - -0.09
Net Appropriations 4,749,787 4,660,178 4,559,188 (100,990) 2.81
Overlay 98,366 43,220 300,000 256,780 0.19
Funding of Veteran's Credits 242,900 280,300 293,200 12,900 0.18
Municipal Tax Effort 5,091,053 4,983,698 5,152,388 168,690 3.18
Assessment Valuation w/ utilities 1,614,602,169 1,620,725,595 1,627,034,595
(Estimated )Tax Impact 3.15 3.07 3.17
Year End Retained Fund Balance 2,167,828 3,263,762
S 0.09

2% budget
See green reductions in CIP summary

increased by 100,000

increased by 50,000

Increased overlay to closer to actual 335,08



STrRATHAM PoLice DEPARTMENT
Anthony J. King — Chief of Police

1716
POLICE 76 Portsmouth Avenue, Stratham, NH 03885
(603) 778-9691 — FAX (603) 778-6183

To: Stratham Select Board

From: Chief Anthony King

Subject: Release of Golf Funds Request
Date: August 9, 2023

Dear Board Members,

In the past two years, the Stratham Police Department has received donations from the Stratham
Volunteer Fire Department. These donations were proceeds received from the Stratham First
Responder Golf Classics held in 2021 and again in 2022. In 2021 the PD received $29,217 and in
2022 the PD received another $29,465. To date, the PD has expended $8,837.50 for the Body
Worn Camera grant match; another $5,457.00 for the NH Highway Safety Traffic Grant match
where we purchased a new portable speed trailer sign-board, and (3) new dash mounted radar
units and lastly, approximately $300.00 in equipment for Stratham Summerfest. This leaves
approximately $44,000 left in this account.

As approved by the Board, these funds are designated to be used for: “community initiatives and
programs, officer wellness and peer support, law enforcement equipment and training, emergency
preparedness and public safety tools.”

I am therefore requesting $5741 to be released directly from the Stratham First Responder Golf
Donation account for the following equipment purchases:

e $2414.51 to purchase and replace Officer Corey Wynn’s SERT Tactical Vest. This was
handed down to him when he was chosen to serve on the team and needs replacement due
to age and proper fitting.

e $3326.00 to purchase and upgrade camera sensors on the side and rear of the police
department. The current camera set-up lacks coverage of the rear of the police department
building and a portion of the main entrance of the building.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at your earliest

convenience.
Respectfully submitted,
Anthony King _

Chief of Police



TOWN OF STRATHAM
Incorporated 1716
10 Bunker Hill Avenue - Stratham, NH 03885
Town Clerk/Tax Collector 603-772-4741
Select Board/ Administration/ Assessing 603-772-7391
Code Enforcement/Building Inspections/Planning 603-772-7391
Fax (All Offices) 603-775-0517

TO: Select Board Members

FROM: Mark Connors, Director of Planning and Community Development
FOR: August 14, 2023

RE: Release of Performance Bonds

The Select Board has requested the Town work to release performance guarantees related to
previous Planning Board approvals and this memo provides updates related to two funds:

Kennebunk Savings Bank

The Town is holding two performance guarantees in the amounts of $1,000 and $2,500 related
to the construction of the Kennebunk Savings Bank at 9 Portsmouth Avenue. The site plan was
approved by the Planning Board in 2016 and the bond agreement was signed with the Town in
late 2017. The $1,000 is held for evergreen plantings and the $2,500 is held for the installation
of a granite bench, bike rack, and other landscaping on the site.

| have inspected the site and the evergreen plantings have been installed per plan and the
granite bench and other landscaping is also in place. The bike rack is not in its designated
space consistent with the approved site plan. | have spoken with the bank management and
requested they install the bike rack consistent with the plan so that all funds can be released
and this project can be fully closed out.

In the meantime, | would recommend the Planning Board release the funds specific to the
evergreen plantings, held in a separate account, in the amount of $1,000 plus any accumulated
interest. We will continue to work with the bank so the remaining funds can be released in
relatively short order.

Stratham Green Solar

| wanted to provide you an update regarding the potential release of the funds being held by the
Town to guarantee the removal of solar energy facilities at the Stratham Green condominium
development. The Association approached the Planning Board in late 2022 and requested a
zoning amendment to provide for alternatives to a financial bond (the Town is currently
holding approximately $4,400 from the Association) for ensuring the removal of solar facilities
after they are abandoned. The Planning Board agreed to sponsor such an amendment, which
required a plan for the removal of the facilities and the recording of a legal document
committing the applicant to the removal. The amendment passed in the March 2023 Town
Election.

After the election, | worked with the Town’s Attorney on a legal document to formalize this
requirement for the condominium association president to sign and to be recorded at the



Registry of Deeds (see attached Covenant and Lien). The Association President came in to sign
the documentation, but requested that it be reviewed by their legal counsel. | have recently
heard from the Association President, who expressed significant concern about signing the
document as she is uncomfortable with a lien being placed on common property owned by the
Association. | have reached out to the Town’s Attorney to see if there is alternative language
that would satisfy the Town’s requirements while addressing the association’s concerns.

I am hopeful that we can reach a resolution that would provide for the funds to be released to
the Assocation, however, pending a complete resolution of the issue, the Town will continue to
hold the funds.



- Copy
PERFORMANCE AND ESCROW AGREFMENT '

THIS AGREEMENT entered into by and between <75, < | | RNS’MJY_(’\’@.EJLC
. " (company/individual name) - ‘
of  "TOAMR ___ hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor” and the
(place of business) . ; ‘
Town of Stratham in the County of Rockingham and the State of New Hampshire, hereinafter

referred to as the "Town.” :
WHEREAS, the Contractor is obligated to complete various infrastructure improvements
and perform other work to.be done and performed in accordance with the subdivision/site plans,

road profile plans, and specifications related to a certain final approved subdivision/site plan entit],
Arneled Site PAN SHEET C2. Atteche )

(description of approved plan)

{date of approval)
and on file with the Town, and/or recorded at the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds as Plan

Number 42 -9% S O] , and;

(Registry Recording Number)

as approved by the Planning Board of éthe Town of Stratham on “"f Z@ ' { @7 NOD 3 g/ iﬁa[ { @7%,

WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to pmﬁde the Town security in the form of an Escrow

Account to ensure the completion of any and all infrastructure improvements in connection with

Bike Rackk Reiche . (ﬁéﬁ}erﬁaﬂ@eg Flaicts,

- (description of improvements being bonded) -

¥

-that remain undone, incomplete, unfinished, or in need of restoration, all pursuant to the previously

cited Planning Board approval and in accordance with the Subdivision and/or Site Plan Review

) Regulations of the Town of Stratham presently in effect, as those plans and specifications may be

adjusted or amended by the reasonable judgment or decision of t!}e Town's construction inspector,
all hercaﬁe_r referred to as “Improvements”, and; |

WHEREAS, the Contractor agrees, inter alia, 0 perform the obligations and conditions as
set forth herein on orbefore | z;"' 4 . {ﬁ | ,and
“date of completion)

further agrees to inde:imity, save, and hold harmless the Town against any damages and equitable
claims caused by the Contractor’s failure to perform under this Agreement, and;

Page 1 of 5



e Yot Y

‘WHEREAS, the Town and the Contractor have agreed to an Escrow Account for the sole
benefit of the Town in the event the Contrdctor, for any reason, fails to fully perform its
commitments and obhgatxons as set forth herein with the Town, and;

WHEREAS, the Contractor has deposited simultancously with the execution of this

Performance and Escrow Agreement in an Fscrow Account w;th and for the beneﬁt of the Town the

sum of ZSO:)Q’“W“‘@C/&:A%W E@&Molﬁmﬁ 5 500 Ga

(total bond amount)
The Escrow Account shall stand in the name of the Town as security for the Contractor’s

performance of the work and of this Agreement,
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, undertakings, and other

lawful consideration hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:

1. Thatthe Town will hold said Escrow Account for the sole benefit of the Town and shall use
such funds for the purposes and upon the conditions hereinafter set forth,

2 In the event that the Contractor shall default or fail to complete the Improvements or meet
and perform its commitments or oblj gations set forth herein on or before the date cited above
and should the Town desire to use szid Escrow Account or other security funds to repair
and/or correct deficiencies in said Improvements, the Town will file with the Contractor &

*written statement stating that the Contractor is in default of its performance obligations
hereunder and said funds will be used to correct the stated deficiencies caused by the

Contractor.

- 3. - The Townagrees that any payments received by it from such funds shall be expended solely

for the purpose of curing any default or defaults of the Contractor of its obligaﬁons and
commitments as set forth in the this Agrcement Such expenditures, as the Town may deem
necessary to incur, shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the reasonable costs of
hiring any enginesrs, contractors, or other consultants, administrative costs of the Town,

and/or any legal fees related to thig Agreement,

Page 2 of 5



e

‘The Town agrees to inspect the construction and/or infrastructure Improvements installed by

the Contractor, from time to time, upon completion thereof and within a reasonable time
after receipt of written request to do so from the Contractor and to advise the Contractor of
any deficiencies in the said work. The Town reserves the right and ability to hire any
engineers, or other consultants ag the Town deems necessary to inspect the work, and the
Contractor agrees to pay all reasonable cost thereof, The Contractor agrees to cure any such
cited deficiencies. In the event the Contractor fails to cure any deficiencies cited within
thirty (30) days of citation, the Town shall have the right, but not the obligation, fo draw
agamst the Escrow Accoum for the purpose of curing the said deficiency.

In the evznt the Town, if: its judgment, finds a deficiency which constitutes an emergency
due to the Jmmedmte hazard it presents to public health, safety, and/or welfare, the Town
may take prompt action as the Town shall deem necessary to cure said deficiency, but shall
not have the obligation to do s0. The Town shall have the right to draw against the Escrow
Account for any and all costs and/or expenses incurred in correcting said deficiency caused
by the Contractor,

The Contractor shall be entitled to examine all documents, which the Town may have in its
possession, relating to the Agreement during regular office bhours, and the Town will, at the
Contractor's request and expense, furnish copies of any said documents that the Contractor
may request; '
Amounts placed in said Escrow Account shall not be released to the Contractor until the
Town's constmcuon Inspector certifies to the Board of Selectmen that all commitrnents and
obligations of this agresment have been met by the Contractor pursuant to the provisions of

the Town's Subdivision and/or Site Plan Review Regulations or terms of the stated Planning

Board approval,

Page 3 of 5§



10.

11.

If the Contractor shall complete the Improvements and meet its obligations herein prior to
the date cited above in a manner satisfactory to the Town or its agents, the amount of

!/d\.) A ' Dollars ($ j!\‘»}“i\ ) or
i)ort%ons thereof shall be released to the Contractor. The remaining minimum amount of

Thivk, A Huded ¥7,. D: S50 i
TLI "% U L2 Dollars ($ 3: IO\ ) shall remain in

the Bscrow Account for a period of one (1) year from the date of completion of the work as a

maintenance bond. At the end of the one (1) year period, the Town shall notify the
Contractor in writing as to any work required to be performed to correct or fix any
deficiencies or undue wear on the Improvements. The Contractor shall have thirty (30) days
from that notice in which to correct or fix such deficiencies and upon completion thereof, the
maintenance bond shall be released to the Contractor.

It is expressly understood by the parties hereto that this Agreement is not intended for the
benefit of any third party, including but not Limited to contractors, subcontractors, or
materialmen of the Contractor, and is designed solely to protect the Town from any legal or
equitable claim and all costs and expenses, to include but not limited to legal fees and/or
experts and consultants, arising from the failure of the Contractor to perform its
commitments and obligations hereunder. This Agreement shall not be assignable by the
Contractor to any third party or successor without the written consent of the Selectmen,

In the event of the death or incapacity of the Contractor and the failure of the '&Jontmctor‘s
successor or legal representative to act in compliance with the Contractor's commitments and
obligations hereunder, the Town shgll have the right, but not the obligation, to draw against
such funds for the purpose of performing the Contractor's commitments and obligations s
set forth herein.

Atsuch time as the Town by its Selectmen shall deem appropriate, the Selectmen may consider
acceptance of the Improvements as a publicroad, if previously dedicated for that purpose. Upon
an affirmative Vote of the Seleotmen, the Contractor shall ender a deed in form acceptable 0
the Selectmen conveying the roadway to the Town. Upon recording of the deed at the

Page 4 of 5



et i ettt i

* Rockingharh County Registry of Desds, this Agroement shall tesminate and any funds leftin the
Escrow Account shall be returned t6 the Contractor. |
12, Itis expressly understood by the parties hereto that 8 waiver by the Town of any breach or
_ defanlt by the Contractor of the obligations, terms, and/or conditions of this Agreement shall
not be deemed a waiver of any other or future breaches and/or defaults thereof.
13. Tfany clause of this Agreément be declared invalid or unconstitutional in whole or in part

and is for any reason rendered nul! and void, the remaining clauses shall remain in full force

and effect.
o S .
Dated ttis (! dayor N ferdse 20 [7
CONTRACTOR:
O _

7\ 3 **'::‘f:[% /74‘@557')
//}QLC//—“ By: T/ g~
‘@ﬂfs ™ (Duly Atthdrized) :

TOWN OF STRATHAM

: By Ifs Selectmen
’ﬁ’imesﬁft(')a_l ) éelﬁe ‘ //’ Tz

M:\Datafiles\Administretion\Bonds\SUBDIVIS ION-STTE PLAN BOND.DOC

‘Page 50f 3



™

APR 2%

TOWN OF STRATHAM
Incorporated 1716
10 Bunker Hill Avenue - Stratham, NH 03885
Town Clerk/Tax Collector 603-772-4741
Selectmen’s OfﬁcefAdministratioanssessing 603-772-7391
Code Enforcemént/BuiIding Inspections/Planning 603-772-7391
Fax (All Offices) 603-775-0517

atf

Planning Board
NOTICE OF DECISION

Petition of: Realty Acquisitions, LLC, 142 Portsmoutk Avenue/PO Box 432, Stratham NH
03885,

Project Name: Site Plan Review, Conditional Use Permit Application, for construction of
banking facility with drive-through services.

Premises Affected: 9 Portsmouth Avenue, Stratham, NH Tax Map 4, Lot 11.

So as to: Approve the application for the above request by approving the Site Plan Review,
Conditional Use Permit for 9 Portsmouth Avenye for construction of banking facility
with drive-through services.

The Stratham Planning Board, at its meeting of March 16, 2016 and after a public hearing,
completed its consideration of the application for the Site Plan Review and Conditional Use
Permit application for the property located at 9 Portsmouth Avenue,

The Board based its decision on plans, supporting oral and written information, and records
provided by the Applicant, professional staff, consultants for both the Applicant and the Board,
and abutters, as reflected in the minutes on file at the Siratham Town Hall. This
information shall be incorporated into the decision by reference.

As a result of such consideration, the Planning Board found that the application as amended
was in Substantial Compliance with the Stratham Zoning Ordinance and Site Plan
Review Regulations. The Planning Board voted unanimously in favor ‘o Grant the Site Plag
Review and Conditional Use Permit Approval based op the information and stated
conditions attached and incorporated hereto.



Site Pian ReviewConditiona) Use Permit Application — 9 Portsmouth Avenue, Tax Mep
4, Ler 11

Rezity Azguisiiions, LLC., 142 Porsmouth Ave/PO Box 432, Stratham, NH 03885,
March 1€, 32056

B s At - T S S

On March 16, 2016, upon a motion made by Tom House and seconded by Nancy Ober, the
Planning Board herein CONDITIONALLY APPROVED the Site Plan Review, and
Conditional Use Permit Application, pursuant to the Stratham Zoning Ordinance for the
comstruction of a bank and related drive-through facilitics at 9 Portsmouth Avenue in
accordance with the Stratham Zoning Ordinance and Site Plan Review Regulations. The final
vote was unanimous. The property lies within the Gareway Commercial  Business
District- Central Zone Zoning District and is locaied on real propery shown on the
Stratham Assessors Tax Map 4, Parcel 11 and consists of approximately 0.68 acres with
existing accesses via Portsmouth Avenue and West Road. The Applicant submitted a
complete application which was noticed and reviewed in accordance with RSA 6764 &
675:7. The Applicant has. filed with the Planning Board the minimum plans and
information required under the Stratham Site Pian Review Regulations.

During the review process, the Applicant and its professional consultants submitied various
revisions to the plans along with various supplemental memoranda and correspondence in
response fo requests by the Planning Board and the Planning Department that reviewed
the project. All of these plans, reports and cotrespondence, and meeting minutes are contained
in the Planning Depariment's files and are hereby incorporated by reference into the public
record for this public hearing.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT:

1. All final revisions to the approved plans and/or related documents required by the
Town Deparnnents and Town Consultants or comments/recommendations/requirements to
be addressed by the Applicant,

2. Work with staff to clean up housekeeping items and submission of final documents such as
state permits from NHDES for septic, and NHDOT

CONDITIONS SUBSE(UENT:

1. Provide 18 from edge of curb to edge of building for EMErgency access;
2. Provide an as-built that clearly delineates the water lines and where water is coming from;

. The Applicant shall comply with all Site Plan Review regnlations and Zoning Ordinance
regulations in effect as of the filing of the Application.

ta2

GENERAL CONDITIONS:

1. Unless otherwise stated, all previous approvals and plans associated with this property and
project area shall remain in full force. Further, the provisions of this conditiona! Site Plan
Review approval shall apply to and be binding upon the Applicant and all successors and
assigns in interest or control.

2. This Site Plan Review approval is based upon the following information, which is
incorporated into this decision by reference:

[O¢]



Site Plan Review/Conditionai Use Permit Application — 9 Persmouth Avenue, Tax Map

4, Lot1l
Realry Acquisitions, LLL,, 142 Portsmouth Ave/PO Box 432, Swatham, NH 03885,
March 15, 2016

Plan titled: “Kennebunk Savings Bank” Tax Map 4 Lot 11, 9 Portsmouth Ave,
Stratham, NH. '

Prepared for: Realty Acquisitions, LLC., 142 Portsmouth Ave /PO Box 432, Swratham
NH 03885.

Prepared by: Jones & Beach Engineering, Inc., 85 Portsmouth Avenue, Stratham, NH
03885..

Scale: Varied
Date: February 25, 2016, Last Revised March 16, 2016

Reviewed and Conditionalty Approved by Planning Board March 16,
2016.

3. Should any disagreement arise or clarification be needed in the enforcement and/or
implementation of any of these conditions, the Planning Board shzl! be the sole and final
interpreter of the intent, performance and outcomes of these conditions subject only to the
statutory right to judicial review of any Planning Board decision,

A / v ,/ 4 /
- zi;é*‘»/ Aol #2d /e
/Planning Boaaé/ Date

P
I



Printec! from Internet for on 11/29/2017

wr ONHEYM "W 1330S VG VEI O DR z ey e ad
TwEE md%%gnwkgxﬁ%ﬁgx bl ﬁ-hﬂoﬂ!._ ..uq._-_.n_.—:w Supsamibug poy b 2 o w03 TG -c” R
HN WYHLVHIS “3Ay SO & g = R z 3 = i} L S 1] I
A m@zsﬂméummwmﬁz e - | o4l ‘steaurduy yoeag x sauop m / ] 0000 YRV Ve N Doy el S
TUIET v v Ave L o7t e Ty o ey
] NV JLIS amm— el Lot i) .m.u ﬂ
weg o v -
Pl [y
cwmﬁwh ST 1 4 e 5 e - i o B
3vaq 268 STV 'UATIOD "W BAVO - & s 4 T ———————— 3
) g e it i NEIS .09 SdITIiHd, DNUSIE ¢
IR0 BBl “WRALAS Jo uMo) \. 04 B s 5= ot | ] | i
B % b i e e e e m ——— e 1
B R e , g
i ]
* —— e . M e | & _F
- H i
W Qs Mgy . e
oy e - = i B ST i i |3
RSB BN LTSI TR i - , ¥ i
T e St Y TSP A S A _ ‘ . |- L
s 18 oty 6w S LS 0 b B - = v
W LR 1 B B e e e e m
3 NOLVOHOEED -l
- H
5 : v e TR
otz s ey
spemEmEmeEm / :
e RIS e o oy g :ninEiiﬂH”M ¥ n];uHWr g o/ i n..a, L &
POUYTERS 06 §0va (man) Wng vatemnds (N AL R G LD W L e e - R~ N
s i - e P H
von s som w e BT
crpeaiR ETHERNGE | alSsiiing /

/ vt |

/ \ ———

T

¥ S oy €08 TN ¢

7,_’,1'2

M(MJWM.A S

i,
3

i, sn

)~




RS

0008 L "ON 1N0Md 387 seac0 ‘POVHLYLLS 0F Od x ISYAONYEINOTBFAF TVt d BEVEO0 HN Wweum g A8 NOMBIAIN “F0 O ALTFIVTTLNOHLM ONY 9% 3106 B8N IHL Ly |
AN omn ‘uﬁgown"’xmhﬁc homtotita i 3 £15 08 o Fal NGIATY L] Garest 30 TIHE TENLEHLO U0 CIIHOHLAY 'SNOLVIELITY ANY
7 T Srireii00 sanalag Bupssaurfug noy) e = SNOWAAH UONH ) o ¥ 5IM0F
NO HN -mw_.ﬂ._.m m "IAY %Mﬂm._%ﬂnun‘m otoig - ....mm — ““ R TR BT NEILLRUA 11OHIUM T3LS00W 38 10N TIYHE 8k fite | 5
. 0
IAVS YNNE: QU] ‘saasuldug Yowayg » m‘mEOH_ \.HW iy SO L ot Se REAE ST, e i |
©H DHUI NY1d 3.11S A3aN3NY RN A HN W PIONROIJ PARE POLOS] Ted NV3d 20k Gk 5 T T E]
i
E
ora voodyog ‘ot 4
Lamin ) 8=} V08 ]
. ‘_“E.«.m i 1 % = 1 ! NDIS .99 SdITIIHd. DNISIAE §
PUBO DULELd WEGRAS O WL & T e T e T T T SR Bl =l J/ E
e T
||||||||||||||||||| | ! 7
e rm—, 15
e T rl
14 S O/ IS L5V B B i & WMHI\\H’H
e i ST 5 A0 Bt S, I3
WD "L LT Y VT XPL LY AVONN, e S —————— Idlﬁ.._ e N
‘3ONIHI3Y 40 NvTd B v Al 00 1w % Il < 5
ol W T o - - —— L o
FTLH VEE O 91940 YSH DL LNVIRIAd - - “# s m
0z *44 Avn @ity NN ALE DY 0 WOLYRON SAVKIVUS O MeGL I O BOMBSIOH  — — e e e i e e s S |
B i STt T AL g B T S0 VoS V06 L V) e MMAVILE do o e == Aw_ wu
ATHEL NAUM YO0 LON B Lres w ST S e ==t | I e
%ﬁﬁ!ﬁgﬂﬂﬂnﬁzﬁi ‘NOUWDIFUEID £6/001 SalH s | 3 L Vm
3AY HLNOWSLHOJ NSRS o N | B
S A s T B - §
¥ D) £ OTE QS /e o AL £ T s
QL (Y 1F0) 1 YEYSE DHUEIG §L 10T b VM ! _ .
Xl TR O WY (WY 3N 100 ™ - W
&
Z
g

G RUOAEO TS SRLALSY WILINALSNGD T L‘IAL.F
Youvao! NOKS CATNEY Wy f
UL TS D SV B G S A {
N O DGNIYE R T 1V IS B O KA |
TAUOH TEAMGHIO SETN AMOTT |
sttt A
Zeils—= =
HORL IO GY DU 0 MCUMRLLY Bk O L i i
ES%JZE&: W
0 R A 5 e et BT Pttt
VRIS
LN IR0 SETHN 'L 0 SNV
W ¥ e ) VIR 38 G OHEINO TH g
I
i
UMV 30 TG SAowY Okl T ALk st T
WOUS VN MLOM M 0L 3 TIVE GV JOdS TIY |
UMA 40 UTIOO ¥ 1 AL idul HOLYSUEIS -

THL O MOLIETT LELLYVY B M. ToweGuooy
1247 TIHiG v Lk B BSE T 71

‘CUEX03Y JIMIHLY
T IONYRYA ¥ TSIV SHOILYYIEN SWUOT ol
L HIR RDSED THVHE ZVMOE TIS0M0Nd T ‘16

E 0 iwels W Ol WOk DL

EHOUY ORI
G CRING DALY HOTOR $H0
IR WETL CHY VLS “Wo0) THVITLAY T
HUM OHAMACS B0 THSN0MR 1V HOMODN 8

(VM 1A
QvOoH 153m

o TS G00T

EEEEE

|




b Y i Erh Y08 0d 029y j0 ) Baar oma s iy g
NS HN WYHLYILS “3AV HLNOWS 104 6 2 i SIS Bumoanfug pg) s papsL DI
ANVE SONIAVE HNEIRR T ol

. MO W CETATY M%
DUl ‘sIeaulduy Yoeaqg x sauofp @
T NYId HOLINS HOLYHINTD g /[f

HN Ui PIpaig PAB peulpeq
S3U AL

I

550

13 05 209°EC
VEUY 1071 w101

W e e
[ TR
 —
R105d 9805 e — | ]"l'u
H9BED HN WYHIVIIS - i a4 n
ZEF X0O8 04 N
J(IMIAY HLNOWSINOA 20t TIVOS OIHAVHD
9N 30Y HANOKS 1104 L4 300108
THGI3A 40 BINNO

1L107 P vt xvd R
PILIVHIS 10 NitOL
TIIUV 103108

/j ——— )
5.1 308

AN NYTd HOLVHINID

dvd wOivEinem
| ok soring

Ty
[+ dvi Xy !

apttT

1% e

P
A A ot

AN A A A s

WS
o AR AR DI A DA
Ay ot AR




CROW CONSTRUCTION CORP
Commercial, Industrial, Residential
Stratham, NH 03885

PROPOSAL

12/1/2017

Pipers Property

Re: 9 Portsmouth Ave.
Kennebunk Savings Bank project
Attn: Rob Graham

Landscaping and fixtures Bond

We are pleased to hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

1. Provide all plantings per plan L-1 by Jones & Beach dated 3/4/16 @ $25,000.00
2. Provide plantings to screen generator, supply bike rake, picnic table, and granite

bench @ $1,000.00

We at CROW Construction Corp., Propose to furnish labor and material - complete in

accordance with above specifications, for the sum of:
Twenty Six Thousand dollars $26,000.00)

EXCLUSIONS

Authorized ;S‘igmu‘ure'D\l oy - Date (2-(~( 7

Daniel Crow, President

Note: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within ___10 __ days.

Date

Acceptance of Proposal_X

603-772-3611
PO Box 275
Stratham NH 03885



COVENANT AND LIEN

For value received, the Stratham Green Condo Association (the “Grantor”), owner of a
certain parcel of land known as the Stratham Green Condominiums, a 60-unit condominium
development situated on a 66-acre tract identified in the Stratham Tax Maps as Map 17, Lot 13
(the “Property”), hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

In consideration of the Stratham Planning Board’s approval of a Conditional Use Permit
and Site Plan on August 5, 2020 to permit the installation of a ground-mounted solar energy
system (the “Facility”) on the Property owned by the Grantor, the Grantor covenants that within
ninety (90) days after the abandonment of the Facility or any termination of the Facility’s
operation, the Facility will be removed in its entirety from the site and the land under the Facility
will be restored to the condition that existed prior to installation of the Facility.

This covenant will run with the land and be binding upon the Grantor’s heirs, successors,
and assigns. It is for the benefit of the Town of Stratham (the “Grantee™) and shall be enforced
by the Grantee. Any failure to perform the obligations of this covenant will constitute a violation
of the Stratham Zoning Ordinance and of New Hampshire RSA Chapter 674. If the Grantor is
deficient in meeting the obligations described herein, the Grantee reserves the right to pursue all
available remedies to obtain compliance including the imposition of civil penalties in the
maximum amount prescribed under state law and the recovery of attorneys’ fees.

The Grantor further grants a lien on the Property to the Grantee to secure the performance
of the obligations described above. The lien will survive any transfer of the Property and will be

discharged only upon the complete performance of these obligations.

Executed this _ day of ,

[Grantor]

By:
Gail Sudduth
Stratham Green Condo Assoc. President




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , , by

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My commission expires:



ASSET ACCOUNTS

Bunker Hill Ave Improvements People's Bank | $ 17,224.32
Bunker Hill Commons Fire Cistern People's Bank | $ 8,029.54
Mobil Cistern TD Bank S 33,842.35
Tansy Ave People's Bank | S 7,094.46
Winterberry Cistern People's Bank | $ 942.46
Fire Protection Fund People's Bank | S 47,357.28
Total Asset Accounts $114,490.41
Very long term or perhaps asset
|Green Solar Surety ‘ I People's Bank | S 4,408.42 |
|Varsity Wireless Historic Sign (designated for Heritage Comm for signage--spend) I People's Bérn‘;{é l $ 7,297.99 |
Rental Deposit Escrow Accounts
Foss Property Sec. Dep. People'sBank | S 3¥664.16
Gifford House Sec. Deposit People's Bank | $ 2,116.33
Park Cottage Sec. Dep. People'sBank | $ 969.06
S 6,749.55
PERFORMANCE BONDS
Altid Enterprises (2011 Bond-Mark will confirm release w/ DPW) People'sBank | S 11,208.55
Kennebunk Savings Landscape Bond - People'sBank | $ 1,018.38
Kennebunk Savings Performance (Maint) Bond People'sBank | $ 2,545.94
200 Domain Drive Landscape Bond People's Bank | $ 2,552.56
Lindt Offsite Improvements (expired impact fees?) People's Bank | S 1,261.88
o " Prepare for immediate release $ 18,587.31
NHSPCA People's Bank | S 35,889.61
Robie Farms--renamed Treat Farms People'sBank | $ 111,729.41
Anticipate release in 2022 S 147,619.02
GCNE (2004) People'sBank |S 35,311.27
Jotaph Realty (2005 ) People'sBank | S 22,737.09
Very old and probably should have been released long ago S 58,048.36
SUMMARY
for immediate release S 18,587.31
anticipate 2022 release S 147,619.02
should have been released and will be confirmed S 58,048.36
FUNDS TO BE RELEASED S 224,254.69
cemetery land fund S 7,513.88
asset S 114,490.41
like asset S 4,408.42
escrow S 6,749.55
to spend S 7,297.99

FUNDS TO BE MAINTAINED ’ I

| 3 140,460.25

Current Balance of DESA Account

$

332,128.48



TOWN OF STRATHAM
Incorporated 1716
10 Bunker Hill Avenue - Stratham, NH 03885
Town Clerk/Tax Collector 603-772-4741
Select Board/ Administration/ Assessing 603-772-7391
Code Enforcement/Building Inspections/Planning 603-772-7391
Fax (All Offices) 603-775-0517

TO: Select Board Members

FROM: Mark Connors, Director of Planning and Community Development
FOR: August 14, 2023

RE: Release of Performance Bonds

The Select Board has requested the Town work to release performance guarantees related to
previous Planning Board approvals and this memo provides updates related to two funds:

Kennebunk Savings Bank

The Town is holding two performance guarantees in the amounts of $1,000 and $2,500 related
to the construction of the Kennebunk Savings Bank at 9 Portsmouth Avenue. The site plan was
approved by the Planning Board in 2016 and the bond agreement was signed with the Town in
late 2017. The $1,000 is held for evergreen plantings and the $2,500 is held for the installation
of a granite bench, bike rack, and other landscaping on the site.

| have inspected the site and the evergreen plantings have been installed per plan and the
granite bench and other landscaping is also in place. The bike rack is not in its designated
space consistent with the approved site plan. | have spoken with the bank management and
requested they install the bike rack consistent with the plan so that all funds can be released
and this project can be fully closed out.

In the meantime, | would recommend the Planning Board release the funds specific to the
evergreen plantings, held in a separate account, in the amount of $1,000 plus any accumulated
interest. We will continue to work with the bank so the remaining funds can be released in
relatively short order.

Stratham Green Solar

| wanted to provide you an update regarding the potential release of the funds being held by the
Town to guarantee the removal of solar energy facilities at the Stratham Green condominium
development. The Association approached the Planning Board in late 2022 and requested a
zoning amendment to provide for alternatives to a financial bond (the Town is currently
holding approximately $4,400 from the Association) for ensuring the removal of solar facilities
after they are abandoned. The Planning Board agreed to sponsor such an amendment, which
required a plan for the removal of the facilities and the recording of a legal document
committing the applicant to the removal. The amendment passed in the March 2023 Town
Election.

After the election, | worked with the Town’s Attorney on a legal document to formalize this
requirement for the condominium association president to sign and to be recorded at the



Registry of Deeds (see attached Covenant and Lien). The Association President came in to sign
the documentation, but requested that it be reviewed by their legal counsel. | have recently
heard from the Association President, who expressed significant concern about signing the
document as she is uncomfortable with a lien being placed on common property owned by the
Association. | have reached out to the Town’s Attorney to see if there is alternative language
that would satisfy the Town’s requirements while addressing the association’s concerns.

I am hopeful that we can reach a resolution that would provide for the funds to be released to
the Assocation, however, pending a complete resolution of the issue, the Town will continue to
hold the funds.



- Copy
PERFORMANCE AND ESCROW AGREFMENT '

THIS AGREEMENT entered into by and between <75, < | | RNS’MJY_(’\’@.EJLC
. " (company/individual name) - ‘
of  "TOAMR ___ hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor” and the
(place of business) . ; ‘
Town of Stratham in the County of Rockingham and the State of New Hampshire, hereinafter

referred to as the "Town.” :
WHEREAS, the Contractor is obligated to complete various infrastructure improvements
and perform other work to.be done and performed in accordance with the subdivision/site plans,

road profile plans, and specifications related to a certain final approved subdivision/site plan entit],
Arneled Site PAN SHEET C2. Atteche )

(description of approved plan)

{date of approval)
and on file with the Town, and/or recorded at the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds as Plan

Number 42 -9% S O] , and;

(Registry Recording Number)

as approved by the Planning Board of éthe Town of Stratham on “"f Z@ ' { @7 NOD 3 g/ iﬁa[ { @7%,

WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to pmﬁde the Town security in the form of an Escrow

Account to ensure the completion of any and all infrastructure improvements in connection with

Bike Rackk Reiche . (ﬁéﬁ}erﬁaﬂ@eg Flaicts,

- (description of improvements being bonded) -

¥

-that remain undone, incomplete, unfinished, or in need of restoration, all pursuant to the previously

cited Planning Board approval and in accordance with the Subdivision and/or Site Plan Review

) Regulations of the Town of Stratham presently in effect, as those plans and specifications may be

adjusted or amended by the reasonable judgment or decision of t!}e Town's construction inspector,
all hercaﬁe_r referred to as “Improvements”, and; |

WHEREAS, the Contractor agrees, inter alia, 0 perform the obligations and conditions as
set forth herein on orbefore | z;"' 4 . {ﬁ | ,and
“date of completion)

further agrees to inde:imity, save, and hold harmless the Town against any damages and equitable
claims caused by the Contractor’s failure to perform under this Agreement, and;

Page 1 of 5



e Yot Y

‘WHEREAS, the Town and the Contractor have agreed to an Escrow Account for the sole
benefit of the Town in the event the Contrdctor, for any reason, fails to fully perform its
commitments and obhgatxons as set forth herein with the Town, and;

WHEREAS, the Contractor has deposited simultancously with the execution of this

Performance and Escrow Agreement in an Fscrow Account w;th and for the beneﬁt of the Town the

sum of ZSO:)Q’“W“‘@C/&:A%W E@&Molﬁmﬁ 5 500 Ga

(total bond amount)
The Escrow Account shall stand in the name of the Town as security for the Contractor’s

performance of the work and of this Agreement,
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, undertakings, and other

lawful consideration hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:

1. Thatthe Town will hold said Escrow Account for the sole benefit of the Town and shall use
such funds for the purposes and upon the conditions hereinafter set forth,

2 In the event that the Contractor shall default or fail to complete the Improvements or meet
and perform its commitments or oblj gations set forth herein on or before the date cited above
and should the Town desire to use szid Escrow Account or other security funds to repair
and/or correct deficiencies in said Improvements, the Town will file with the Contractor &

*written statement stating that the Contractor is in default of its performance obligations
hereunder and said funds will be used to correct the stated deficiencies caused by the

Contractor.

- 3. - The Townagrees that any payments received by it from such funds shall be expended solely

for the purpose of curing any default or defaults of the Contractor of its obligaﬁons and
commitments as set forth in the this Agrcement Such expenditures, as the Town may deem
necessary to incur, shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the reasonable costs of
hiring any enginesrs, contractors, or other consultants, administrative costs of the Town,

and/or any legal fees related to thig Agreement,

Page 2 of 5



e

‘The Town agrees to inspect the construction and/or infrastructure Improvements installed by

the Contractor, from time to time, upon completion thereof and within a reasonable time
after receipt of written request to do so from the Contractor and to advise the Contractor of
any deficiencies in the said work. The Town reserves the right and ability to hire any
engineers, or other consultants ag the Town deems necessary to inspect the work, and the
Contractor agrees to pay all reasonable cost thereof, The Contractor agrees to cure any such
cited deficiencies. In the event the Contractor fails to cure any deficiencies cited within
thirty (30) days of citation, the Town shall have the right, but not the obligation, fo draw
agamst the Escrow Accoum for the purpose of curing the said deficiency.

In the evznt the Town, if: its judgment, finds a deficiency which constitutes an emergency
due to the Jmmedmte hazard it presents to public health, safety, and/or welfare, the Town
may take prompt action as the Town shall deem necessary to cure said deficiency, but shall
not have the obligation to do s0. The Town shall have the right to draw against the Escrow
Account for any and all costs and/or expenses incurred in correcting said deficiency caused
by the Contractor,

The Contractor shall be entitled to examine all documents, which the Town may have in its
possession, relating to the Agreement during regular office bhours, and the Town will, at the
Contractor's request and expense, furnish copies of any said documents that the Contractor
may request; '
Amounts placed in said Escrow Account shall not be released to the Contractor until the
Town's constmcuon Inspector certifies to the Board of Selectmen that all commitrnents and
obligations of this agresment have been met by the Contractor pursuant to the provisions of

the Town's Subdivision and/or Site Plan Review Regulations or terms of the stated Planning

Board approval,

Page 3 of 5§



10.

11.

If the Contractor shall complete the Improvements and meet its obligations herein prior to
the date cited above in a manner satisfactory to the Town or its agents, the amount of

!/d\.) A ' Dollars ($ j!\‘»}“i\ ) or
i)ort%ons thereof shall be released to the Contractor. The remaining minimum amount of

Thivk, A Huded ¥7,. D: S50 i
TLI "% U L2 Dollars ($ 3: IO\ ) shall remain in

the Bscrow Account for a period of one (1) year from the date of completion of the work as a

maintenance bond. At the end of the one (1) year period, the Town shall notify the
Contractor in writing as to any work required to be performed to correct or fix any
deficiencies or undue wear on the Improvements. The Contractor shall have thirty (30) days
from that notice in which to correct or fix such deficiencies and upon completion thereof, the
maintenance bond shall be released to the Contractor.

It is expressly understood by the parties hereto that this Agreement is not intended for the
benefit of any third party, including but not Limited to contractors, subcontractors, or
materialmen of the Contractor, and is designed solely to protect the Town from any legal or
equitable claim and all costs and expenses, to include but not limited to legal fees and/or
experts and consultants, arising from the failure of the Contractor to perform its
commitments and obligations hereunder. This Agreement shall not be assignable by the
Contractor to any third party or successor without the written consent of the Selectmen,

In the event of the death or incapacity of the Contractor and the failure of the '&Jontmctor‘s
successor or legal representative to act in compliance with the Contractor's commitments and
obligations hereunder, the Town shgll have the right, but not the obligation, to draw against
such funds for the purpose of performing the Contractor's commitments and obligations s
set forth herein.

Atsuch time as the Town by its Selectmen shall deem appropriate, the Selectmen may consider
acceptance of the Improvements as a publicroad, if previously dedicated for that purpose. Upon
an affirmative Vote of the Seleotmen, the Contractor shall ender a deed in form acceptable 0
the Selectmen conveying the roadway to the Town. Upon recording of the deed at the

Page 4 of 5



et i ettt i

* Rockingharh County Registry of Desds, this Agroement shall tesminate and any funds leftin the
Escrow Account shall be returned t6 the Contractor. |
12, Itis expressly understood by the parties hereto that 8 waiver by the Town of any breach or
_ defanlt by the Contractor of the obligations, terms, and/or conditions of this Agreement shall
not be deemed a waiver of any other or future breaches and/or defaults thereof.
13. Tfany clause of this Agreément be declared invalid or unconstitutional in whole or in part

and is for any reason rendered nul! and void, the remaining clauses shall remain in full force

and effect.
o S .
Dated ttis (! dayor N ferdse 20 [7
CONTRACTOR:
O _

7\ 3 **'::‘f:[% /74‘@557')
//}QLC//—“ By: T/ g~
‘@ﬂfs ™ (Duly Atthdrized) :

TOWN OF STRATHAM

: By Ifs Selectmen
’ﬁ’imesﬁft(')a_l ) éelﬁe ‘ //’ Tz

M:\Datafiles\Administretion\Bonds\SUBDIVIS ION-STTE PLAN BOND.DOC

‘Page 50f 3



™

APR 2%

TOWN OF STRATHAM
Incorporated 1716
10 Bunker Hill Avenue - Stratham, NH 03885
Town Clerk/Tax Collector 603-772-4741
Selectmen’s OfﬁcefAdministratioanssessing 603-772-7391
Code Enforcemént/BuiIding Inspections/Planning 603-772-7391
Fax (All Offices) 603-775-0517

atf

Planning Board
NOTICE OF DECISION

Petition of: Realty Acquisitions, LLC, 142 Portsmoutk Avenue/PO Box 432, Stratham NH
03885,

Project Name: Site Plan Review, Conditional Use Permit Application, for construction of
banking facility with drive-through services.

Premises Affected: 9 Portsmouth Avenue, Stratham, NH Tax Map 4, Lot 11.

So as to: Approve the application for the above request by approving the Site Plan Review,
Conditional Use Permit for 9 Portsmouth Avenye for construction of banking facility
with drive-through services.

The Stratham Planning Board, at its meeting of March 16, 2016 and after a public hearing,
completed its consideration of the application for the Site Plan Review and Conditional Use
Permit application for the property located at 9 Portsmouth Avenue,

The Board based its decision on plans, supporting oral and written information, and records
provided by the Applicant, professional staff, consultants for both the Applicant and the Board,
and abutters, as reflected in the minutes on file at the Siratham Town Hall. This
information shall be incorporated into the decision by reference.

As a result of such consideration, the Planning Board found that the application as amended
was in Substantial Compliance with the Stratham Zoning Ordinance and Site Plan
Review Regulations. The Planning Board voted unanimously in favor ‘o Grant the Site Plag
Review and Conditional Use Permit Approval based op the information and stated
conditions attached and incorporated hereto.



Site Pian ReviewConditiona) Use Permit Application — 9 Portsmouth Avenue, Tax Mep
4, Ler 11

Rezity Azguisiiions, LLC., 142 Porsmouth Ave/PO Box 432, Stratham, NH 03885,
March 1€, 32056

B s At - T S S

On March 16, 2016, upon a motion made by Tom House and seconded by Nancy Ober, the
Planning Board herein CONDITIONALLY APPROVED the Site Plan Review, and
Conditional Use Permit Application, pursuant to the Stratham Zoning Ordinance for the
comstruction of a bank and related drive-through facilitics at 9 Portsmouth Avenue in
accordance with the Stratham Zoning Ordinance and Site Plan Review Regulations. The final
vote was unanimous. The property lies within the Gareway Commercial  Business
District- Central Zone Zoning District and is locaied on real propery shown on the
Stratham Assessors Tax Map 4, Parcel 11 and consists of approximately 0.68 acres with
existing accesses via Portsmouth Avenue and West Road. The Applicant submitted a
complete application which was noticed and reviewed in accordance with RSA 6764 &
675:7. The Applicant has. filed with the Planning Board the minimum plans and
information required under the Stratham Site Pian Review Regulations.

During the review process, the Applicant and its professional consultants submitied various
revisions to the plans along with various supplemental memoranda and correspondence in
response fo requests by the Planning Board and the Planning Department that reviewed
the project. All of these plans, reports and cotrespondence, and meeting minutes are contained
in the Planning Depariment's files and are hereby incorporated by reference into the public
record for this public hearing.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT:

1. All final revisions to the approved plans and/or related documents required by the
Town Deparnnents and Town Consultants or comments/recommendations/requirements to
be addressed by the Applicant,

2. Work with staff to clean up housekeeping items and submission of final documents such as
state permits from NHDES for septic, and NHDOT

CONDITIONS SUBSE(UENT:

1. Provide 18 from edge of curb to edge of building for EMErgency access;
2. Provide an as-built that clearly delineates the water lines and where water is coming from;

. The Applicant shall comply with all Site Plan Review regnlations and Zoning Ordinance
regulations in effect as of the filing of the Application.

ta2

GENERAL CONDITIONS:

1. Unless otherwise stated, all previous approvals and plans associated with this property and
project area shall remain in full force. Further, the provisions of this conditiona! Site Plan
Review approval shall apply to and be binding upon the Applicant and all successors and
assigns in interest or control.

2. This Site Plan Review approval is based upon the following information, which is
incorporated into this decision by reference:

[O¢]



Site Plan Review/Conditionai Use Permit Application — 9 Persmouth Avenue, Tax Map

4, Lot1l
Realry Acquisitions, LLL,, 142 Portsmouth Ave/PO Box 432, Swatham, NH 03885,
March 15, 2016

Plan titled: “Kennebunk Savings Bank” Tax Map 4 Lot 11, 9 Portsmouth Ave,
Stratham, NH. '

Prepared for: Realty Acquisitions, LLC., 142 Portsmouth Ave /PO Box 432, Swratham
NH 03885.

Prepared by: Jones & Beach Engineering, Inc., 85 Portsmouth Avenue, Stratham, NH
03885..

Scale: Varied
Date: February 25, 2016, Last Revised March 16, 2016

Reviewed and Conditionalty Approved by Planning Board March 16,
2016.

3. Should any disagreement arise or clarification be needed in the enforcement and/or
implementation of any of these conditions, the Planning Board shzl! be the sole and final
interpreter of the intent, performance and outcomes of these conditions subject only to the
statutory right to judicial review of any Planning Board decision,

A / v ,/ 4 /
- zi;é*‘»/ Aol #2d /e
/Planning Boaaé/ Date

P
I



Printec! from Internet for on 11/29/2017

wr ONHEYM "W 1330S VG VEI O DR z ey e ad
TwEE md%%gnwkgxﬁ%ﬁgx bl ﬁ-hﬂoﬂ!._ ..uq._-_.n_.—:w Supsamibug poy b 2 o w03 TG -c” R
HN WYHLVHIS “3Ay SO & g = R z 3 = i} L S 1] I
A m@zsﬂméummwmﬁz e - | o4l ‘steaurduy yoeag x sauop m / ] 0000 YRV Ve N Doy el S
TUIET v v Ave L o7t e Ty o ey
] NV JLIS amm— el Lot i) .m.u ﬂ
weg o v -
Pl [y
cwmﬁwh ST 1 4 e 5 e - i o B
3vaq 268 STV 'UATIOD "W BAVO - & s 4 T ———————— 3
) g e it i NEIS .09 SdITIiHd, DNUSIE ¢
IR0 BBl “WRALAS Jo uMo) \. 04 B s 5= ot | ] | i
B % b i e e e e m ——— e 1
B R e , g
i ]
* —— e . M e | & _F
- H i
W Qs Mgy . e
oy e - = i B ST i i |3
RSB BN LTSI TR i - , ¥ i
T e St Y TSP A S A _ ‘ . |- L
s 18 oty 6w S LS 0 b B - = v
W LR 1 B B e e e e m
3 NOLVOHOEED -l
- H
5 : v e TR
otz s ey
spemEmEmeEm / :
e RIS e o oy g :ninEiiﬂH”M ¥ n];uHWr g o/ i n..a, L &
POUYTERS 06 §0va (man) Wng vatemnds (N AL R G LD W L e e - R~ N
s i - e P H
von s som w e BT
crpeaiR ETHERNGE | alSsiiing /

/ vt |

/ \ ———

T

¥ S oy €08 TN ¢

7,_’,1'2

M(MJWM.A S

i,
3

i, sn

)~




RS

0008 L "ON 1N0Md 387 seac0 ‘POVHLYLLS 0F Od x ISYAONYEINOTBFAF TVt d BEVEO0 HN Wweum g A8 NOMBIAIN “F0 O ALTFIVTTLNOHLM ONY 9% 3106 B8N IHL Ly |
AN omn ‘uﬁgown"’xmhﬁc homtotita i 3 £15 08 o Fal NGIATY L] Garest 30 TIHE TENLEHLO U0 CIIHOHLAY 'SNOLVIELITY ANY
7 T Srireii00 sanalag Bupssaurfug noy) e = SNOWAAH UONH ) o ¥ 5IM0F
NO HN -mw_.ﬂ._.m m "IAY %Mﬂm._%ﬂnun‘m otoig - ....mm — ““ R TR BT NEILLRUA 11OHIUM T3LS00W 38 10N TIYHE 8k fite | 5
. 0
IAVS YNNE: QU] ‘saasuldug Yowayg » m‘mEOH_ \.HW iy SO L ot Se REAE ST, e i |
©H DHUI NY1d 3.11S A3aN3NY RN A HN W PIONROIJ PARE POLOS] Ted NV3d 20k Gk 5 T T E]
i
E
ora voodyog ‘ot 4
Lamin ) 8=} V08 ]
. ‘_“E.«.m i 1 % = 1 ! NDIS .99 SdITIIHd. DNISIAE §
PUBO DULELd WEGRAS O WL & T e T e T T T SR Bl =l J/ E
e T
||||||||||||||||||| | ! 7
e rm—, 15
e T rl
14 S O/ IS L5V B B i & WMHI\\H’H
e i ST 5 A0 Bt S, I3
WD "L LT Y VT XPL LY AVONN, e S —————— Idlﬁ.._ e N
‘3ONIHI3Y 40 NvTd B v Al 00 1w % Il < 5
ol W T o - - —— L o
FTLH VEE O 91940 YSH DL LNVIRIAd - - “# s m
0z *44 Avn @ity NN ALE DY 0 WOLYRON SAVKIVUS O MeGL I O BOMBSIOH  — — e e e i e e s S |
B i STt T AL g B T S0 VoS V06 L V) e MMAVILE do o e == Aw_ wu
ATHEL NAUM YO0 LON B Lres w ST S e ==t | I e
%ﬁﬁ!ﬁgﬂﬂﬂnﬁzﬁi ‘NOUWDIFUEID £6/001 SalH s | 3 L Vm
3AY HLNOWSLHOJ NSRS o N | B
S A s T B - §
¥ D) £ OTE QS /e o AL £ T s
QL (Y 1F0) 1 YEYSE DHUEIG §L 10T b VM ! _ .
Xl TR O WY (WY 3N 100 ™ - W
&
Z
g

G RUOAEO TS SRLALSY WILINALSNGD T L‘IAL.F
Youvao! NOKS CATNEY Wy f
UL TS D SV B G S A {
N O DGNIYE R T 1V IS B O KA |
TAUOH TEAMGHIO SETN AMOTT |
sttt A
Zeils—= =
HORL IO GY DU 0 MCUMRLLY Bk O L i i
ES%JZE&: W
0 R A 5 e et BT Pttt
VRIS
LN IR0 SETHN 'L 0 SNV
W ¥ e ) VIR 38 G OHEINO TH g
I
i
UMV 30 TG SAowY Okl T ALk st T
WOUS VN MLOM M 0L 3 TIVE GV JOdS TIY |
UMA 40 UTIOO ¥ 1 AL idul HOLYSUEIS -

THL O MOLIETT LELLYVY B M. ToweGuooy
1247 TIHiG v Lk B BSE T 71

‘CUEX03Y JIMIHLY
T IONYRYA ¥ TSIV SHOILYYIEN SWUOT ol
L HIR RDSED THVHE ZVMOE TIS0M0Nd T ‘16

E 0 iwels W Ol WOk DL

EHOUY ORI
G CRING DALY HOTOR $H0
IR WETL CHY VLS “Wo0) THVITLAY T
HUM OHAMACS B0 THSN0MR 1V HOMODN 8

(VM 1A
QvOoH 153m

o TS G00T

EEEEE

|




b Y i Erh Y08 0d 029y j0 ) Baar oma s iy g
NS HN WYHLYILS “3AV HLNOWS 104 6 2 i SIS Bumoanfug pg) s papsL DI
ANVE SONIAVE HNEIRR T ol

. MO W CETATY M%
DUl ‘sIeaulduy Yoeaqg x sauofp @
T NYId HOLINS HOLYHINTD g /[f

HN Ui PIpaig PAB peulpeq
S3U AL

I

550

13 05 209°EC
VEUY 1071 w101

W e e
[ TR
 —
R105d 9805 e — | ]"l'u
H9BED HN WYHIVIIS - i a4 n
ZEF X0O8 04 N
J(IMIAY HLNOWSINOA 20t TIVOS OIHAVHD
9N 30Y HANOKS 1104 L4 300108
THGI3A 40 BINNO

1L107 P vt xvd R
PILIVHIS 10 NitOL
TIIUV 103108

/j ——— )
5.1 308

AN NYTd HOLVHINID

dvd wOivEinem
| ok soring

Ty
[+ dvi Xy !

apttT

1% e

P
A A ot

AN A A A s

WS
o AR AR DI A DA
Ay ot AR




CROW CONSTRUCTION CORP
Commercial, Industrial, Residential
Stratham, NH 03885

PROPOSAL

12/1/2017

Pipers Property

Re: 9 Portsmouth Ave.
Kennebunk Savings Bank project
Attn: Rob Graham

Landscaping and fixtures Bond

We are pleased to hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

1. Provide all plantings per plan L-1 by Jones & Beach dated 3/4/16 @ $25,000.00
2. Provide plantings to screen generator, supply bike rake, picnic table, and granite

bench @ $1,000.00

We at CROW Construction Corp., Propose to furnish labor and material - complete in

accordance with above specifications, for the sum of:
Twenty Six Thousand dollars $26,000.00)

EXCLUSIONS

Authorized ;S‘igmu‘ure'D\l oy - Date (2-(~( 7

Daniel Crow, President

Note: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within ___10 __ days.

Date

Acceptance of Proposal_X

603-772-3611
PO Box 275
Stratham NH 03885



COVENANT AND LIEN

For value received, the Stratham Green Condo Association (the “Grantor”), owner of a
certain parcel of land known as the Stratham Green Condominiums, a 60-unit condominium
development situated on a 66-acre tract identified in the Stratham Tax Maps as Map 17, Lot 13
(the “Property”), hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

In consideration of the Stratham Planning Board’s approval of a Conditional Use Permit
and Site Plan on August 5, 2020 to permit the installation of a ground-mounted solar energy
system (the “Facility”) on the Property owned by the Grantor, the Grantor covenants that within
ninety (90) days after the abandonment of the Facility or any termination of the Facility’s
operation, the Facility will be removed in its entirety from the site and the land under the Facility
will be restored to the condition that existed prior to installation of the Facility.

This covenant will run with the land and be binding upon the Grantor’s heirs, successors,
and assigns. It is for the benefit of the Town of Stratham (the “Grantee™) and shall be enforced
by the Grantee. Any failure to perform the obligations of this covenant will constitute a violation
of the Stratham Zoning Ordinance and of New Hampshire RSA Chapter 674. If the Grantor is
deficient in meeting the obligations described herein, the Grantee reserves the right to pursue all
available remedies to obtain compliance including the imposition of civil penalties in the
maximum amount prescribed under state law and the recovery of attorneys’ fees.

The Grantor further grants a lien on the Property to the Grantee to secure the performance
of the obligations described above. The lien will survive any transfer of the Property and will be

discharged only upon the complete performance of these obligations.

Executed this _ day of ,

[Grantor]

By:
Gail Sudduth
Stratham Green Condo Assoc. President




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , , by

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My commission expires:



ASSET ACCOUNTS

Bunker Hill Ave Improvements People's Bank | $ 17,224.32
Bunker Hill Commons Fire Cistern People's Bank | $ 8,029.54
Mobil Cistern TD Bank S 33,842.35
Tansy Ave People's Bank | S 7,094.46
Winterberry Cistern People's Bank | $ 942.46
Fire Protection Fund People's Bank | S 47,357.28
Total Asset Accounts $114,490.41
Very long term or perhaps asset
|Green Solar Surety ‘ I People's Bank | S 4,408.42 |
|Varsity Wireless Historic Sign (designated for Heritage Comm for signage--spend) I People's Bérn‘;{é l $ 7,297.99 |
Rental Deposit Escrow Accounts
Foss Property Sec. Dep. People'sBank | S 3¥664.16
Gifford House Sec. Deposit People's Bank | $ 2,116.33
Park Cottage Sec. Dep. People'sBank | $ 969.06
S 6,749.55
PERFORMANCE BONDS
Altid Enterprises (2011 Bond-Mark will confirm release w/ DPW) People'sBank | S 11,208.55
Kennebunk Savings Landscape Bond - People'sBank | $ 1,018.38
Kennebunk Savings Performance (Maint) Bond People'sBank | $ 2,545.94
200 Domain Drive Landscape Bond People's Bank | $ 2,552.56
Lindt Offsite Improvements (expired impact fees?) People's Bank | S 1,261.88
o " Prepare for immediate release $ 18,587.31
NHSPCA People's Bank | S 35,889.61
Robie Farms--renamed Treat Farms People'sBank | $ 111,729.41
Anticipate release in 2022 S 147,619.02
GCNE (2004) People'sBank |S 35,311.27
Jotaph Realty (2005 ) People'sBank | S 22,737.09
Very old and probably should have been released long ago S 58,048.36
SUMMARY
for immediate release S 18,587.31
anticipate 2022 release S 147,619.02
should have been released and will be confirmed S 58,048.36
FUNDS TO BE RELEASED S 224,254.69
cemetery land fund S 7,513.88
asset S 114,490.41
like asset S 4,408.42
escrow S 6,749.55
to spend S 7,297.99

FUNDS TO BE MAINTAINED ’ I

| 3 140,460.25

Current Balance of DESA Account

$

332,128.48



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

DE 23-074
TOWN OF STRATHAM

Request for Approval of Stratham Community Power Plan

ORDER OF NOTICE

On August 1, 2023, the Town of Stratham (Stratham) filed a Community Power
Electric Aggregation Plan (Community Power Plan) with the Commission pursuant to
RSA 53-E:7 for Commission review and approval. RSA 53-E:7, II provides that

The commission shall approve any plan submitted to it unless it finds

that it does not meet the requirements of this chapter and other

applicable rules and shall detail in writing addressed to the governing

bodies of the municipalities or counties concerned, the specific respects

in which the proposed plan substantially fails to meet the requirements

of this chapter and applicable rules.

This filing raises, inter alia, issues related to whether Stratham’s Community
Power Plan meets the requirements of RSA chapter 53-E and applicable rules.

RSA 53-E:7, Il also directs the Commission to accept public comments for 21
days after receiving any such request for approval of a community electric aggregation
plan, and states that the Commission’s review of the plan and comments shall not
require a contested case. Accordingly, the Commission hereby provides notice that it
will accept public comments on Stratham’s Community Power Plan within the first 21
days from the date of submission, or until August 22, 2023. Comments shall be

addressed to the Chairman of the Commission, by mail at:

21 South Fruit Street, Suite 10,
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

or by e-mail at: ClerksOffice@PUC.NH.gov.



mailto:ClerksOffice@PUC.NH.gov

DE 23-074
All comments shall readily identify Docket No. DE 23-074 in the document header
and/or in the subject line of any email.

Stratham’s filing, including its Community Power Plan and attachments, and
subsequent docket filings, other than any information for which confidential treatment
is requested of or granted by the Commission, are available on the Commission

website at https://www.puc.nh.gov/Regulatory/Docketbk/2023/23-074.html.

Based upon the foregoing, it is hereby

ORDERED, that public comments shall be accepted, as set forth in this notice
and pursuant to RSA 53-E:7, II, until August 22, 2023; and it is

FURTHER ORDERED, a copy of this order of notice shall be posted on the
Commission's website no later than August 8, 2023.

So ordered, this fourth day of August, 2023.

\BU‘% O\Dsw / @,VL = 7:62

Daniel C Goldner Pradip K. C Carleton B. SimpSon
Chairman ommissioner Commissioner



https://www.puc.nh.gov/Regulatory/Docketbk/2023/23-074.html

DE 23-074

Service List - Docket Related

Docket#: 23-074
Printed: 8/4 /2023

Email Addresses

ClerksOffice@puc.nh.gov
CaseWalworth@aol.com
Energy-Litigation@energy.nh.gov
ocalitigation@oca.nh.gov



EV E RS ":"U RC E Manchester, NH }())(3)]]3?(028

July 2023 =
Dear Neighbor,

The intent of this letter is to keep Eversource Energy customers and abutting property owners informed about electric system
work being conducted in their area.

Soon crews from an Eversource contractor will begin work replacing existing wood transmission structures on or near your
property in the communities of Fremont, Brentwood, Exeter, and Stratham, N.H.

What You Can Expect
Since your property is on or near the project route, here is important information about how we will work in your
neighborhood:
* Reliable Service: Be assured that this work will not interrupt electric service to your property.
¢ Proper Identification: All people working on this project will carry identification.
o Where We Will Be Working: Construction activity will take place within the power line corridor between
Taylor Lane in Fremont, NH and Great Bay Substation in Stratham, NH.
e Construction Hours: Typical construction hours are Monday through Saturday, 7 a.m. through 7 p.m. If longer
work hours are needed, we will request permission from municipal officials as applicable.
e Construction Activities: Construction will occur in phases, including the following:
= Crews conducting survey digging in certain areas prior to construction activities.
*  Construction vehicles in the power line corridor, including heavy equipment, though we will make every
effort to minimize any impact to your property.

® Site grading, mowing/vegetation removal, adding gravel to the access road, and setting timber mats in
wetland areas.

*  The new structures will be of similar height and placed near the existing structures.
®  When the project is completed, crews will restore areas that were disturbed by the work.

e Project Completion: We expect all work, including restoration, to be complete in spring 2024. Please keep in
mind that the schedule may change due to weather and other unexpected circumstances.

Health and Safety Is Our Top Priority

Please know that Eversource remains committed to prioritizing public health as well as the health of employees and
contractors. All Eversource personnel follow applicable health and safety guidelines to help prevent the spread of COVID-19.

For More Information

Keeping the lines of communication open is important to us. Project inquiries can be directed to Kaitlin Griffin at
kaitlin. griffin@eversource.com. You can also contact our project hotline at 1-888-926-5334 or send an email to
NHProjectsInfo@eversource.com.

Eversource is committed to being a good neighbor and doing our work with respect for you and your property. We will
continue to provide regular project notifications via mailings, phone calls and/or emails. Thank you for your patience as
this important project moves forward.

Sincerely,
K .na . ? . ; : .

Kaitlin Griffin
Eversource Project Services

A126/H141/ R193 - July 2023



EVE RS'E:"U RCE Manchester, NHIZ)?IISSOj(Oggg

The followiilg are the upcoming stages of the construction process associated with this transmission structure
replacement work:

Work Area Preparation

Construction vehicles and equipment must be able to access each
transmission structure. For these vehicles, we will build or enhance gravel
roads to provide access to structure locations. We’ll also install level work
pads to create a stable work area for equipment, such as drill rigs and
cranes.

We use timber mats in or around wetlands to protect these environmentally
sensitive areas. Temporary soil erosion and sedimentation controls (for
example, silt fences and straw bales) and other environmental controls may
be installed near the work areas during construction. We will maintain
these controls as needed throughout the construction process. Typically,
these environmental controls are removed after construction, though some
may remain until the area is restored.

Foundation Drilling

When required, drilling activities usually take place for a few days at each
location where structures are being replaced. Depending on soil conditions,
the drilling may last longer. The size of the hole will also vary with the size
of the new structure and soil conditions. At the end of the workday, any
open foundation holes will be safely covered and secured. Once we
complete the foundation installation, we will assemble and install the new
structures.

New Structure Installations and Modifications to Existing

Structures

Once the foundations are complete, we’ll begin installing the new steel
replacement structures. Steel structures often come in sections that are
assembled on site. The structure pieces will be delivered to the power line
corridor in advance of this installation process. Cranes and/or bucket trucks
are used to lift the structures and set them into position on the foundations.

Where existing structures are being modified, crews will climb the structure
or use bucket trucks to make the necessary modifications. Generally, it
takes one to three days to assemble and erect each new structure or modify
an existing structure.

Existing Structure Removal

The existing structures being replaced will be taken apart and removed
from the site. Where needed, the old concrete foundations will be
removed, and the hole filled with soil. We will recycle or properly
dispose of all material removed from the site.

Photos show typical work areas and are for illustration only.

A126/H141/R193 - July 2023



NEW HAMPSHIRE DIVISION OF

HISTORICAL
RESOURCES

ent of Natural and Cultural Resources
17 Pembroke Road, Concord, NH 03301
603-271-3483
TDD Access Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/nhdhr
preservatwn@dncr nh.gov

June 20, 2023

Dear Property Owner:

We are pleased to inform you that the Scammon Farm Historic District, to include the following
properties in Stratham, New Hampshire, will soon be considered by the New Hampshire State Historical
Resources Council for nomination to the National Register of Historic Places:

Parcel 08-001 off River Road/NH 101
Parcel 08-007 River Road cemetery
Parcel 08-008 21 River Road

Parcel 08-009 23 & 25 River Road

This National Register nomination was moved to the Council’s Summer meeting agenda from the Spring
meeting agenda. The Council will meet next on July 31, 2023.

The National Register is the official federal listing of significant heritage resources (buildings, structures,
sites, districts, and objects) worthy of preservation, but it does not impose any restriction or limitation
on the use of private or non-federal property unless federal funds or programs are involved. If the
property is listed in the National Register, certain Federal investment tax credits for rehabilitation and
other provisions may apply.

Although there are no known coal resources in New Hampshire, we are required by federal regulations
to notify you that if the property contains coal resources and is listed on the National Register, certain
provisions of the Surface Mining and Control Act of 1977 make it less likely that surface mining of the
coal will be permitted by the state or federal government.

Owners of private properties nominated to the National Register of Historic Places must be given an
opportunity to concur in or object to listing in accord with the National Historic Preservation Act
Amendments of 1980 and federal regulation 36 CFR Part 60. (These provisions apply to fee simple
ownership only.)

Any owner or partial owner of private property who chooses to object to listing is required to submit to
the State Historic Preservation Officer a notarized statement certifying that the party is the sole or
partial owner of private property, as appropriate, and objects to the listing. In the case of a district
nomination, the district will not be listed if a majority of the owners objects to listing. Each owner or
partial owner of private property has one vote regardless of what part of the property that party owns.

If the district cannot be listed because a majority of owners object prior to the submission of a
nomination by the state, the State Historic Preservation Officer shall submit the nomination to the



Keeper of the National Register for a determination of the eligibility of the property for inclusion in the
National Register. If the property is then determined eligible for listing, although not formally listed,
federal agencies will be required to allow the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation an opportunity
to comment before the agency may fund, license, or assist a project which will affect the property.

If you choose to object to the listing of your private property, the notarized objection must be submitted
to the State Historic Preservation Officer, Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, Division of
Historical Resources, 172 Pembroke Road, Concord, N.H. 03301 by 4pm on July 28, 2023.

If you wish to comment on whether the property should be nominated to the National Register, please
~ send your comments to the Division of Historical Resources, 172 Pembroke Road, Concord, N.H. 03301.
Comments must be received by July 28, 2023.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please feel free to contact me at
megan.r.rupnik@dncr.nh.gov.

Sincerely,

Pragn 1. oy

Megan R. Rupnik
National Register & State Survey Coordinator

cc Stratham Board of Selectmen, c/o Town Administrator, Town of Stratham
Stratham Heritage Commission
Rockingham County Commissioners' Office
Preservation Company



Wive THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPOR TATION

/U&/v ;L(Mt

Department of Transportation

William Cass, P.E. July 27, 2023 David Rodrigue, P.E.
Commissioner Assistant Commissioner
Andre Briere, Colonel, USAF (RET)
Mike Houghton, Chair of Selectboard Deputy Commissioner
Town of Stratham
10 Bunker Hill Avenue

Stratham, NH 03885

Re: Stratham Highway Block Grant Aid — in Accordance with RSA 235:23
Payment for Maintenance, Construction and Reconstruction of Class IV and V Highways

Dear Mr. Houghton:

The following is notification of State Highway Block Grant Aid availabie to your town in State Fiscai
Year 2024 (July 1, 2023 thru June 30, 2024) based on estimated revenues through June 30, 2023. The Block
Grant Aid payment includes highway revenue from Senate Bill (SB) 367 that was effective July 1,2014. The
total could possibly change based on final audited State Fiscal Year 2023 revenues. The resulting adjustment
will be reflected in the April payment. Funding is anticipated to be available upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

State Highway Block Grant Aid anticipated to be available to the Town of Stratham during Fiscal Year
2024 (July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024) is as follows:

July 2023 Actual Payment: $53,659.76
October 2023 Actual Payment: $53,659.76
January 2024 Actual Payment: $35,773.18
April 2024 Estimated Payment: $35,773.17
TOTAL FOR FY 2024: $178,865.87

In generalized terms and in accordance with statutory provisions for distribution of Apportionment “A”
and SB 367 funds, a disbursement is made of approximately $1,463 for each mile of Class [V and Class V
highway inventoried by each municipality and approximately $13 for each person residing in a municipality
based on the state planning estimate of population. Apportionment “B” is distributed this year to 14 small towns
under a somewhat more complicated formula as specified in RSA 235:23, which recognizes the economics of
maintaining their Class V highway mileage when considered in relationship to their equalized valuation tax base.

Please contact us at 271-3344 if you have any questions.
Sincerely,
C. R Willete
C. R. Willeke, PE
Municipal Highways Engineer

Bureau of Planning and Community Assistance

CRW/dmp

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING e 7 HAZEN DRIVE ¢ P.O. BOX 483 « CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734  FAX: (603) 271-3914 « TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 «WWW.NHDOT.COM

S:\Planning\Community Assistance\STATE\BlockGrantAid\FY 2024\BGA Letter 2024-template letter.docx



2023 Household Hazardous

Waste Collection

When: Saturday October 21, 8:00AM-12:00PM

Where: Exeter Public Works Garage, 13 Newfields Rd.

Participating Towns: Exeter, Stratham, Newfields, East Kingston, Epping,
Seabrook, South Hampton

Registration Required: https://publicinput.com/exeterhhw2023

Prohibited Items:

Accepted Items:

. . Adhesive :
Oil based paint Latex paint
Rechargeable batteries : :
Solvents & thinners & Alkaline batteries

Herbicide :

Household cleaners Electronics
. Automotive batteries :
Pesticides Gas cylinders
: Fertilizer : :
Antifreeze Explosive materials
Sealant "
Ammunition

Automotive products

Mercury containing

Used motor oil Radioactive materials

products

Aerosol Infectious or biological waste

Pool chemicals
Fluorescent bulbs Prescription medicine/syringes

Gas, diesel, kerosene Esters

Additional Information

e S$15 user fee covers up to 10 gallons or 20 pounds of waste.

e Online registration is required. Select a 30 minute drop-off window.
e Stay in your vehicle at the event.

e For more information contact your municipality or the Rockingham Planning
Commission, 603-778-0885, email@therpc.org, http://www.therpc.org/hhw



http://www.therpc.org/
https://publicinput.com/exeterhhw2023

New Hampshive THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Department of Transportation

on David Rodrigue, P.E.
William C.'as.s, P.E. Assistant Commissioner
Commissioner )
July 11, 2023 Andre Briere, Colonel, USAF (RET)

Deputy Commissioner
Pike Industries, Inc.

3 Eastgate Park Rd.
Belmont, NH 03220

Re: Stratham-Greenland X-A005(066) 43272
Implement safety improvements along NH 33 corridor

You are hereby advised that construction of referenced contract was

completed and accepted on June 29, 2023.

By copy of this letter the project work is now turned over to the appropriate agency for maintenance. It is the
responsibility of the Contractor to file the required Notice of Termination forms when applicable with the EPA and with
the Department.

Seeded areas that do not establish acceptable growth will be reseeded at the Contractor’s expense per 107.14.
This will not affect the completion and acceptance date and no money will be retained for this work.

A final estimate will be forwarded for review following project audit.

To ensure processing of all payments it is imperative that applicable Certificates of Compliance be on file with
the Department.

The attached CONTRACTOR EVALUATION OF NHDOT PROJECT PERFORMANCE form is voluntary
and is to be directed to the Bureau of Construction office in Concord, N.H. if utilized.

Very truly yours,

Paul E. Metcalf, P.E.
District Construction Engineer

PEM/mw via Construction Administrator
cc:

Bureau of Bridge Design Contract Administrator, Steve Quirion

Bureau of Bridge Design, Chelsea Noyes
Bureau of Bridge Maintenance, A. Hall, L. Byers
Bureau of Budget & Finance

Bureau of Environment, J. Evans, M. Urban
Bureau of Highway Design

Bureau of Highway Maintenance

Bureau of Materials & Research

Bureau of Right-of-Way

Bureau of Traffic, Julie Mathews

Contract Section, M. Drouin, P. Jouvelakas
Bureau of Planning & Community Assistance
Bureau of Turnpikes

Bureau of Rail & Transit

i:\projects\stratham\43272\corresp\letters\c&a-ltr.docx

Utility Section, Lennart Suther

Director of Project Development

District 6 Maintenance

TMC, N. King, C. Blackman

Envir. Coord., D. Elliott, D. Benjamin, A. Czachor
Federal Highway Administration

Office of Access, Opportunity & Compliance
Surety, Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
The Towns of Stratham and Greenland
Project Lead Person, Ron Grandmaison

o CAMS Milestone

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING ¢ 7 HAZEN DRIVE « P.O. BOX 483 « CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734 ¢ FAX: (603) 271-3914 « TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 ¢ WWWW.NHDOT.COM



RAFFLE PERMIT Town of Stratham
APPLICATION Incorporated 1716

10 Bunker Hill Ave.. = Stratham, NH 03885

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Organization Applying for Permit: _

(;agre.- Ontylg;lalnggp{;ﬁngc:nrbcmapemit) ;! /on D [ X g (’ SVFDA) Employer ID #:

Address: L Winn: - 0 Shothamn [Sue Ny Zp: 938K
1‘3';;“;‘;‘ (“a/olyn Bavron Phone: (103 253~ L, Yuf Emait: () ynb@ dutook. cdm

RAFFLE/DRAWING PERMIT INFORMATION

Date(s) Raffle Tickets Wil Be Sold:  S¢pt 2, 7072

Dateof Draving: ¢ ot 24, 200% Location of Daving: _ Shyathorm Will urk

List ltensto be Raffe: TBd  We will be asbma@z, o Cerd

J
/{om-hms Mm IOUJ bu51w£5%<~ M fe$+Mqu~:|’§

A‘/\Q.\; Ao _a %{L.O {5z

Reason for Raffle: é)zz‘{jy «dec; a4 e Ty mp IKS  Z0*

Shdham thll Cor acd  Bike Show

How is Raffle Going to be Conducted (i.e. door to door, only at events, only family and friends, etc.):

on LL’i ab Avtud

Other (any other pertinent information):

I have read the provisions of NH RSA 287-A (attached) and by signing below, state that the organization I represent will comply with those
provisions at all times.

> : AW A Date: 8“')22

[0 ApPROVED [ DENIED Reason for denial:

Selectman Signature: Date:

Selectman Signature: Date:

Selectman Signature: Date:




	SB Memo 8 14 2023
	sb AGENDA 8 14 2023
	7 31 2023 sb minutes
	Finance Reports packet total
	June 2023 - Financial Status Report
	2023 June month end reports
	2023 Mid-year recap
	2023 Signed MS 535
	2023 Tax Rate revised

	Golf Fund Request- Vest and Camera
	SM Bond Release
	SM Release fo funds
	2017.11.11 Bond
	TOS-Scanner_20230403_100224
	List of Performance Bonds

	Action - SM Bond Release
	SM Release fo funds
	2017.11.11 Bond
	TOS-Scanner_20230403_100224
	List of Performance Bonds

	Informational - 23-074_2023-08-04_nhpuc_order-of-notice
	Service List - Docket Related
	Docket#: 23-074
	Printed: 8/4/2023


	Informational - Eversource ltr 7-2023
	Informational - NH Div of Historical Resources 6-20-2023 ltr re Scammon Farm Historic District
	NHDOT Highway Block Grant Aid 2023
	2023_HHW_Flier
	Correspondence - C&A ~ Stratham-Greenland 43272
	Raffle Permit Application-Troop 185 - Car Show

